GrubHub Inc. Form DEF 14A April 01, 2016

#### UNITED STATES

#### SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

#### SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934

(Amendment No. )

Filed by the Registrant x

Filed by a Party other than the Registrant "

Check the appropriate box:

" Preliminary Proxy Statement Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule " 14a-6(e)(2)) Definitive Proxy x Statement Definitive Additional " Materials Soliciting Material under Rule <sup>..</sup> 14a-12

GRUBHUB INC. (Name of registrant as specified in its charter)

(Name of person(s) filing proxy statement, if other than the registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

x No fee required.

Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(4) and

·· 0-11.

- (1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
- (2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:

(3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):

- (4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:
- (5) Total fee paid:
- " Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.
- Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.
  - (1) Amount Previously Paid:
  - (2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:

(3) Filing Party:

(4) Date Filed:

1

## 111 W. Washington Street, Suite 2100

Chicago, Illinois 60602

# NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

TO BE HELD ON MAY 11, 2016

Dear Grubhub Stockholder:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders ("Annual Meeting") of Grubhub Inc. (the "Company"), a Delaware corporation, will be held on Wednesday, May 11, 2016 at 8:00 a.m. CST, at the offices of Kirkland & Ellis LLP, located at 300 North LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60654, for the following purposes, as proposed by our Board of Directors:

- 1. To elect David Fisher, Justin Sadrian and Benjamin Spero as Class II directors to serve until the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and until their respective successors shall have been duly elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation, death or removal;
- 2. To ratify the appointment of Crowe Horwath LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016;
- 3. To approve, by advisory vote, the compensation of the Company's named executive officers;
- 4. To recommend, by advisory vote, the frequency of future advisory votes on named executive officer compensation; and
- 5. To transact such other business as may properly be raised at the Annual Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on March 18, 2016 are entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

Your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, we encourage you to read the accompanying Proxy Statement and to submit your proxy or voting instructions as soon as possible. For specific instructions on how to vote your shares, please refer to the instructions on the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials you received in the mail or, if you received printed proxy materials, on the enclosed proxy card.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Margo Drucker SVP, General Counsel and Secretary

Chicago, Illinois April 1, 2016

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting to be Held on May 11, 2016:

The Proxy Statement and the 2015 Annual Report to Stockholders, which consists of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, are available at http://www.proxyvote.com. We expect the proxy materials to be mailed and/or made available to each stockholder entitled to vote on or before April 1, 2016.

2

# Table of Contents

Questions and Answers about the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders	1
Proposal No. 1: Election of Directors	6
Information Regarding Director Nominees and Current Directors	7
Information Regarding the Board and Corporate Governance	10
Board Leadership Structure	10
Director Independence	10
Meetings of the Board and the Committees of the Board	10
Executive Sessions of the Board	10
Board and Committee Self-Evaluations	10
Committees of the Board	11
Audit Committee Report	12
Procedure for Nominating Directors	13
Code of Ethics and Corporate Governance Guidelines	13
Prohibition against Hedging and Pledging Transactions	14
Board's Role in Risk Oversight	14
Director Compensation	15
Proposal No. 2: Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	17
Principal Accountant Fees and Services	17
Proposal No. 3: Advisory Vote on Named Executive Officer Compensation	18
Proposal No. 4: Advisory Vote on the Frequency of Future Advisory Votes on Named Executive Officer	19
Compensation	
Executive Officers	20
Executive Compensation	21
Compensation Committee Report	21
Compensation Discussion and Analysis	21
Executive Summary	21
Executive Compensation Philosophy and Objectives	24
Compensation Decision Process	25
Compensation Components and 2015 Compensation Decisions	26
Compensation-Related Policies	31
Tax and Accounting Treatment of Compensation	32
Executive Compensation Tables	33
Summary Compensation Table	33
Grants of Plan-Based Awards	34
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End	35
Options Exercised and Stock Vested	36
Employment Agreements	36
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control	38
Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions	40
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners, Directors and Management	43
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	46
Additional Information	46

i

## GRUBHUB INC.

111 W. Washington Street, Suite 2100

Chicago, Illinois 60602

PROXY STATEMENT

# FOR THE 2016 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

MAY 11, 2016

## QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE 2016 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Why am I receiving these materials?

These proxy materials are being furnished to you in connection with the solicitation by the Board of Directors (the "Board") of Grubhub Inc. ("Grubhub," the "Company," "we," "us" or "our") of proxies to be voted at our Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Annual Meeting") or at any adjournment or postponement thereof. The Annual Meeting will be held on Wednesday, May 11, 2016 at 8:00 a.m. CST, at the offices of Kirkland & Ellis LLP, located at 300 North LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60654. In accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), we sent out a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials on or before April 1, 2016 and provided access to the proxy materials over the Internet on or before that date, to the holders of record and beneficial owners of our common stock at the close of business on March 18, 2016 (the "Record Date").

Why did I receive a one-page notice in the mail regarding the Internet availability of proxy materials instead of a full set of proxy materials?

Pursuant to rules adopted by the SEC, we have elected to provide access to our proxy materials over the Internet. Accordingly, we mailed a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials to our stockholders (other those who previously requested paper copies) on or before April 1, 2016. The Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials contains instructions on how to (i) access and view the proxy materials over the Internet, (ii) vote and (iii) request a paper or electronic copy of the proxy materials. In addition, if you received paper copies of our proxy materials and wish to receive all future proxy materials, proxy cards and annual reports electronically, please follow the electronic delivery instructions on www.proxyvote.com. We encourage stockholders to take advantage of the availability of the proxy materials on the Internet to help reduce both costs and the environmental impact of the Annual Meeting.

What am I being asked to vote on?

You are being asked to vote, either in person or by proxy, on the following items:

•the election of three Class II directors to serve until the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and until their respective successors shall have been duly elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation, death or removal; •the ratification of the appointment of Crowe Horwath LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016;

•the approval, by advisory vote, of the compensation of our named executive officers, which is commonly referred to as the "say-on-pay" vote; and

the recommendation, by advisory vote, of the frequency of future advisory votes on named executive officer compensation.

In addition, you are entitled to vote on any other matters that are properly brought before the Annual Meeting or at any adjournments or postponements thereof.

How does the Board recommend that I vote?

Our Board recommends that you vote your shares as indicated below. If you return a properly completed proxy card, or vote your shares by telephone or Internet, your shares of common stock will be voted on your behalf as you direct. If not otherwise specified, the shares of common stock represented by proxies will be voted, and our Board recommends that you vote, as follows:

· "FOR" the election of each of the Class II director nominees;

• "FOR" the ratification of the appointment of Crowe Horwath LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016;

- ·"FOR" approval of the compensation of our named executive officers; and
- •"1 YEAR" as the frequency of future advisory votes on named executive officer compensation.

Who is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting?

The Record Date for the Annual Meeting is March 18, 2016. You are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting only if you were a Grubhub stockholder at the close of business on that date, or if you hold a valid proxy for the Annual Meeting. On each matter to be voted on at the Annual Meeting, you are entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held as of the Record Date. Stockholders have no right to cumulative voting as to any matter, including the election of directors. At the close of business on the Record Date, there were 84,624,805 shares of common stock issued and outstanding and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting.

How can I attend the Annual Meeting?

You are entitled to attend the Annual Meeting only if you were a Grubhub stockholder as of the Record Date or you hold a valid proxy for the Annual Meeting. In order to attend the Annual Meeting, you must present a valid, government-issued photo identification, such as a driver's license or passport. If you are not a stockholder of record, but hold shares as a beneficial owner in street name, you must provide the foregoing identification as well as a valid proxy from the broker, bank, trustee or nominee that holds your shares giving you the right to vote the shares at the Annual Meeting. All bags, briefcases and packages will be held at registration and will not be allowed in the meeting.

If you do not provide photo identification or comply with the other procedures outlined above, you will not be admitted to the Annual Meeting.

If you requested to receive printed proxy materials, please let us know if you plan to attend the meeting by marking the appropriate box on the enclosed proxy card. If you are voting by telephone or Internet, please indicate whether you plan to attend if prompted.

If you are unable to attend in person, you can view a live webcast of the Annual Meeting. For additional information, see "I am unable to attend the Annual Meeting in person. Can I view the meeting via webcast?" below.

I am unable to attend the Annual Meeting in person. Can I view the meeting via webcast?

As an alternative to attending the Annual Meeting in person, you may listen to a live webcast of the Annual Meeting. To do so, go to http://investors.grubhub.com on May 11, 2016 just prior to 8:00 a.m. CST, select the "Events" icon and select the appropriate link. The Annual Meeting webcast will be available on our website for a limited time after the meeting. Please note that if you participate in the Annual Meeting by live webcast, the shares of stock you own will not be voted or deemed present at the meeting unless you submitted a proxy by mail, Internet or telephone

prior to the Annual Meeting.

How many shares must be present or represented to hold the Annual Meeting?

A quorum must be present at the Annual Meeting for any business to be conducted. A majority of the shares entitled to vote, present in person or represented by proxy, will constitute a quorum. If a quorum is not present at the Annual Meeting, no business can be transacted at that time, and the meeting will be continued, adjourned or postponed to a later date. A stockholder's instruction to "withhold" authority, abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted as present for purposes of determining quorum. See "What is a 'broker non-vote'?" and "What is an abstention and how will votes withheld and abstentions be treated?" below for an explanation of broker non-votes, abstentions and votes withheld.

2

What is the difference between a "stockholder of record" and a "street name" holder?

If your shares are registered directly in your name with our transfer agent, American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, then you are considered, with respect to those shares, a "stockholder of record." If your shares are held in an account at a brokerage firm, bank, broker-dealer, trust or other similar organization, you are considered the beneficial owner of shares held in "street name."

How do I vote if I am a stockholder of record?

We recommend that stockholders vote by proxy even if they plan to attend the Annual Meeting. If you are a stockholder of record, there are three ways to vote by proxy:

·By Internet: You can vote over the Internet at www.proxyvote.com by following the instructions on the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or proxy card;

•By Telephone: You can vote by telephone by calling toll-free 1 (800) 690-6903 and following the instructions on the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or proxy card; or

·By Mail: You can vote by mail by signing, dating and mailing the proxy card, which you may have received by mail.

The Internet and telephone voting facilities for eligible stockholders of record will close at 10:59 p.m. CST on Tuesday, May 10, 2016. The giving of a telephonic or Internet proxy will not affect your right to vote in person at the Annual Meeting should you choose to attend. If you choose to attend the Annual Meeting, you will have the ability to change your vote.

How do I vote if my shares are held in "street name"?

If your shares are held in street name through a broker, bank, trustee or nominee, you will receive instructions on how to vote from your broker, bank, trustee or nominee. You must follow those instructions in order for your shares to be voted. If your shares are not registered in your own name and you would like to vote your shares in person at the Annual Meeting, you must obtain a valid proxy from the broker, bank, trustee or nominee that holds your shares giving you the right to vote the shares at the Annual Meeting.

Can I change my vote or revoke my proxy?

If you are a stockholder of record, you may change your vote or revoke your proxy at any time prior to the final vote at the Annual Meeting by:

•granting a new proxy bearing a later date (which automatically revokes the earlier proxy) using any of the methods described above (and until the applicable deadline for each method);

providing written notice of revocation to our Secretary at Grubhub Inc., 111 W. Washington Street, Suite

2100, Chicago, Illinois 60602, prior to or at the Annual Meeting; or

 $\cdot$  attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person.

Your most recent proxy submitted by proxy card, Internet or telephone is the one that is counted. Your attendance at the Annual Meeting by itself will not automatically revoke your proxy.

For shares you hold beneficially in street name, you may change your vote by submitting new voting instructions to your broker, bank, trustee, or nominee following the instructions they provided, or, if you have obtained a legal proxy from your broker, bank, trustee, or nominee giving you the right to vote your shares, by attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person.

How many votes are needed to approve each proposal?

The following table summarizes the votes needed to approve each proposal, the effect of withhold votes/abstentions and whether broker discretionary voting is permitted.

#### Withheld Votes/Abstentions **Discretionary Vote** Proposal Counted as a "No" VoteAllowed? Vote Required **Election of Directors** Plurality No No Ratification of the appointment of Majority No Yes independent registered public accounting firm No Advisory vote on named executive officer Majority No compensation Advisory vote on the frequency of future Not Applicable (Stockholder No No advisory votes on named executive officer Recommendation Only) compensation

Under our amended and restated bylaws, directors are elected by a plurality of the votes cast for each such director by holders of our shares of common stock present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on the election of directors at the Annual Meeting. A "plurality" means that the three director nominees receiving the highest number of "FOR" votes from holders of our shares of common stock present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be elected. Votes "withheld" and broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of the election of directors.

Also under our amended and restated bylaws, any matter other than the election of directors is decided by the vote of a "majority" of votes cast by holders of our shares of common stock present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. Any matter or proposal for which the vote required is a "majority" will be approved if the votes cast "FOR" such proposal exceed the number of votes cast "AGAINST" such proposal. Abstentions and broker non-votes will not affect the outcome of such votes, because abstentions and broker non-votes are not considered to be votes cast under our amended and restated bylaws.

As required by law, with respect to the advisory vote on the frequency of future advisory votes on named executive officer compensation, the frequency receiving the highest number of votes from holders of shares of our common stock present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be considered the frequency recommended by the stockholders. However, although the Board and the Compensation Committee will seriously consider the outcome of the vote when determining how often we should submit future say-on-pay votes to our stockholders, because this proposal is advisory, the result will not be binding on the Board.

#### What is a "broker non-vote"?

If you are a beneficial owner whose shares are held of record by a broker, you must instruct the broker how to vote your shares. If you do not provide voting instructions, your shares will not be voted on any proposal on which the broker does not have discretionary authority to vote. This is called a "broker non-vote." In these cases, the broker can register your shares as being present at the Annual Meeting for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum, but will not be able to vote on those matters for which specific authorization is required under New York Stock Exchange

#### ("NYSE") rules.

If you are a beneficial owner whose shares are held of record by a broker, your broker has "discretionary voting" authority under NYSE rules to vote your shares on "routine" matters, such as the ratification of Crowe Horwath LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm, even if the broker does not receive voting instructions from you. However, your broker does not have discretionary authority absent specific instructions from you to vote on the following "non-routine" matters: the election of directors, the advisory vote on the compensation of our named executive officers, or the advisory vote on the frequency of future advisory votes on named executive officer compensation, in which case a broker non-vote will occur and your shares will not be voted on these matters.

What is an abstention and how will votes withheld and abstentions be treated?

A "vote withheld," in the case of the proposal regarding the election of directors, or an "abstention," in the case of the proposal regarding the ratification of the appointment of our independent registered public accounting firm, the advisory vote on the compensation of our named executive officers, and the advisory vote on the frequency of future advisory votes on named executive

officer compensation, represents a stockholder's affirmative choice to decline to vote on a proposal. Votes withheld and abstentions, though counted for the purposes of determining a quorum, will not be counted as votes cast and therefore will have no effect on the outcome of any of the proposals.

Who will count the votes?

Broadridge Financial Services, Inc. ("Broadridge") has been engaged as our independent agent to tabulate stockholder votes. If you are a stockholder of record, your executed proxy card is returned directly to Broadridge for tabulation. As noted above, if you hold your shares through a broker, your broker returns one proxy card to Broadridge on behalf of all its clients. Brandt Kucharski, our Controller, will serve as Inspector of Elections at the Annual Meeting.

Where can I find the voting results of the Annual Meeting?

We plan to announce preliminary voting results at the Annual Meeting and will report the final voting results in a Current Report on Form 8-K, which we intend to file with the SEC within four business days of the Annual Meeting.

What if I return a proxy card but do not make specific choices?

If you submit a proxy but do not indicate any voting instructions, the persons named as proxies will vote in accordance with the recommendations of the Board. The Board's recommendations are indicated both on page 1 of this Proxy Statement, as well as with the description of each proposal in this Proxy Statement.

Will any other business be conducted at the Annual Meeting?

We know of no other business that will be presented at the Annual Meeting. If any other matter properly comes before the stockholders for a vote at the Annual Meeting, however, the proxy holders named in the proxy card will vote your shares in accordance with their best judgment.

Who pays for the expenses of solicitation?

Our Board is soliciting your proxy on behalf of the Company. The Company pays for the costs of the distribution of the proxy materials and solicitation of proxies. As part of this process, we reimburse brokerage houses and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for their expenses for forwarding proxy and solicitation materials to our stockholders. Our directors, officers and employees may also solicit proxies on our behalf in person, by telephone or by other means of communication. Directors, officers and employees will not be paid any additional compensation for soliciting proxies.

What does it mean if I receive more than one set of materials?

If you receive more than one set of materials, that means your shares are registered in more than one name or are registered in different accounts. In order to vote all of the shares you own, you must either sign and return all of the proxy cards or follow the instructions for any alternative voting procedure on each of the proxy cards or Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials you receive.

#### PROPOSAL NO. 1

#### ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with our certificate of incorporation, the Board is divided into three classes with staggered, three-year terms. Each class consists, as nearly as possible, of one-third of the total number of directors. The Board presently has nine members. There are three Class II directors whose term of office expires at the 2016 Annual Meeting, David Fisher, Justin Sadrian and Benjamin Spero, all of whom the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee recommended, and our Board nominated, for election at the Annual Meeting. If elected at the Annual Meeting, each of Messrs. Fisher, Sadrian and Spero will serve until the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and until his successor has been duly elected and qualified, or, if sooner, until his death, resignation or removal.

The Board is not aware that any nominee will be unwilling or unable to serve as a director. All nominees have consented to be named in the Proxy Statement and to serve if elected. If, however, a nominee is unavailable for election, your proxy authorizes us to vote for a replacement nominee if the Board names one. As an alternative, the Board may reduce the number of directors to be elected at the meeting. Proxies may not be voted for a greater number of persons than the nominees presented.

A brief biography of each director nominee and each director whose term will continue after the Annual Meeting is set forth below under "Information Regarding Director Nominees and Current Directors." The biographies below include information regarding specific experience, qualifications, attributes or skills of each director nominee or director that led the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee to determine that such individual should serve as a member of the Board as of the date of this Proxy Statement.

Vote Required

The proposal regarding the election of directors requires the approval of a plurality of votes cast by holders of shares of our common stock present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. Votes withheld or "broker non-votes" will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on this proposal.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" the election of each of David Fisher, Justin Sadrian and Benjamin Spero as Class II directors.

# INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTOR NOMINEES AND CURRENT DIRECTORS

Nominees for Election to a Three-Year Term Expiring at the 2019 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (Class II Directors)

David Fisher. David Fisher, 46, has served on our Board since August 8, 2013 (the "Merger Date"), the date of the business combination (the "Merger") of Grubhub Holdings Inc. ("Grubhub Holdings") and Seamless North America, LLC ("Seamless"). From June 2012 until the Merger Date, Mr. Fisher served on the board of directors of Grubhub Holdings. Mr. Fisher has served as Chief Executive Officer and President of Enova International, Inc. ("Enova"), a provider of online financial services, since January 2013, and as Chairman of Enova since November 2014. From September 2011 to March 2012, Mr. Fisher served as Chief Executive Officer of optionsXpress Holdings, Inc. ("optionsXpress"), a retail online brokerage firm, and as Senior Vice President of Charles Schwab Corporation following its acquisition of optionsXpress. From October 2007 to September 2011, Mr. Fisher served as Chief Executive Officer of optionsXpress, from March 2007 to October 2007, as its President, and, from August 2004 to March 2007, as its Chief Financial Officer. Prior to joining optionsXpress, Mr. Fisher served as the Chief Financial Officer of Potbelly Sandwich Works from 2001 through 2004, of RBC Mortgage from 2000 through 2001 and of Prism Financial from December 1998 through January 2001. Mr. Fisher currently serves on the board of directors, compensation committee and audit committee of Innerworkings, Inc., a global print management provider. Mr. Fisher previously served as a member of the board of directors of CBOE Holdings, Inc. from January 2008 through October 2011. Mr. Fisher also serves on the Board of Trustees of the Museum of Science and Industry in Chicago. Mr. Fisher holds a B.S. in Finance from the University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign and a J.D. from Northwestern University School of Law.

We believe Mr. Fisher is qualified to serve as a member of our Board because of his valuable managerial, accounting and financial reporting experience and the insights he brings as a chief executive officer of a public company, a former chief financial officer for a number of companies and a current and former member of the board of directors of public companies.

Justin L. Sadrian. Justin Sadrian, 43, has served on our Board since the Merger Date. From October 2012 until the Merger Date, Mr. Sadrian served on the board of directors of Seamless. Mr. Sadrian currently serves as partner at the firm of Warburg Pincus & Co., and a Member and Managing Director of Warburg Pincus LLC, a private equity firm that he joined in 2000. Mr. Sadrian leads the firm's West Coast office and focuses on media, Internet and information investments. Prior to joining the firm, Mr. Sadrian worked at J.P. Morgan in its investment banking and private equity groups. Mr. Sadrian currently serves on the board of directors and compensation committee of Endurance International Group Holdings, Inc., a leader of cloud-based solutions. He is also on the board of directors of Avalara, MultiView, Inc., The Gordian Group, Inc., Payscale and A Place for Mom Inc. In the last five years, he has also been a director of Service Repair Solutions, onTargetjobs, CAMP Systems, and Centrum.cz. In addition, Mr. Sadrian is a Vice Chair of Friends of Hudson River Park and a director of Building Educated Leaders for Life. Mr. Sadrian received an A.B. from Dartmouth College and an MBA from Harvard Business School.

We believe that Mr. Sadrian is qualified to serve as a member of our Board of Directors because of the strategic insights he brings as a private equity investor in the technology and media spaces.

Benjamin Spero. Benjamin Spero, 40, has served on our Board since the Merger Date. From June 2011 until the Merger Date, Mr. Spero served on the board of directors of Seamless. Mr. Spero currently serves as Managing Director of Spectrum Equity, a private equity firm that he joined in 2001. He was nominated to our Board by SLW Investors, LLC, which was an affiliate of Spectrum, pursuant to the terms of the Stockholders' Agreement that we entered in connection with the Merger. Prior to joining Spectrum, Mr. Spero was a consultant at Bain & Company and co-founder of TouchPak, Inc. Mr. Spero has served on the boards of directors of Ancestry.com LLC, Animoto

Inc., iPay Technologies, LLC, ExactBid LLC, Mortgagebot LLC, NetQuote, Inc., SurveyMonkey Inc. WeddingWire Inc. and Jimdo GmbH. Mr. Spero is also Board Chair at Destination: Home, a public-private partnership to end homelessness in Santa Clara County, and is a Board Trustee at Children's Day School in San Francisco, CA. Mr. Spero holds a B.A. in Economics and History from Duke University.

We believe that Mr. Spero is qualified to serve as a member of our Board because of the strategic insights he brings as a private equity investor and his extensive experience serving on boards of directors of companies in the technology space as well as on public company board.

Class III Directors Continuing in Office Until the 2017 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Lloyd Frink. Lloyd Frink, 51, has served on our Board since December 2013. Mr. Frink is co-founder of Zillow, Inc., an online real estate marketplace, which, upon Zillow's merger with Trulia, Inc. in February 2015, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zillow Group, Inc. Mr. Frink has served as Zillow, Inc.'s Vice Chairman since March 2011, President and a member of its board of directors since February 2005, in each case until Zillow's merger with Trulia, and now serves in these capacities for Zillow Group, Inc. Mr. Frink previously served as Zillow, Inc.'s Vice President from December 2004 to February 2005, as its Treasurer from December 2009 to March 2011, and as its Chief Strategy Officer from September 2010 to March 2011. From 1999 to 2004, Mr. Frink was at Expedia, Inc., where he held many leadership positions, including Senior Vice President, Supplier Relations, in which position he managed the

air, hotel, car, destination services, content, merchandising and partner marketing groups from 2003 to 2004. Mr. Frink holds an A.B. in Economics from Stanford University.

We believe Mr. Frink is qualified to serve on our Board because of his extensive background and experience with Internet-based companies, including experience in marketing products to consumers through the Internet.

Girish Lakshman. Girish Lakshman, 51, has served on our Board since March 2015. Mr. Lakshman has served as President, Fulfillment – Supply Chaining and Sourcing of Sears Holdings Corporation, a leading integrated retailer, since September 2015. From July 1999 until August 2014, Mr. Lakshman worked in various capacities as part of the e-logistics strategy team at Amazon.com, Inc., the online retailer. Most recently, from May 2006 until August 2014, he was Amazon's Vice President, Worldwide Transportation Strategy and Technology where he managed multi-disciplinary functions in transportation, including interfacing with global supply chain and fulfillment centers. Prior to Amazon, Mr. Lakshman managed the enterprise resource-planning group for the wire products division at Leggett and Platt. Mr. Lakshman has also worked in India in the electrochemical and automobile industries. Mr. Lakshman is on the advisory board of the Master of Supply Chain Transportation and Logistics program at University of Washington. Mr. Lakshman holds a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from Osmania University, India.

We believe Mr. Lakshman is qualified to serve on our Board because of his background and extensive experience with e-commerce and logistics.

Keith Richman. Keith Richman, 42, has served on our Board since February 2016. He has served as the President of DEFY Media, the top creator, distributor and owner of millennial-focused digital content, since October 2013. At DEFY Media, Mr. Richman oversees content development, product, technology and marketing. Previously, from 2005 until October 2013, Mr. Richman served as the co-founder and CEO of Break Media, a digital media company, until the company merged with Alloy Digital. Prior to Break Media, he was the co-founder and vice president of OnePage, which was acquired by Sybase in 2002, and co-founder and director of business development for Billpoint Inc., which was acquired by eBay in 1999. Previously, he was a Business Development Manager at Excite and Classifieds2000, as well as Director of Corporate Planning at the Walt Disney Company, where he focused on consumer products, cable and emerging media. Mr. Richman also serves on the Board of Directors of Reader's Digest. Mr. Richman received a B.A. in International Relations and M.A. in International Policy from Stanford University.

We believe Mr. Richman is qualified to serve on our Board because of his extensive experience as an entrepreneur and executive in digital media, including significant experience in digital advertising, mobile and emerging technologies.

Class I Directors Continuing in Office Until the 2018 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Katrina Lake. Katrina Lake, 33, has served on our Board since December 2015. She is the founder and CEO of Stitch Fix, a personal styling-based e-commerce company, which was founded in February of 2011 while she was a student at Harvard Business School. From June 2010 until September 2010, Ms. Lake managed the blogger platform at Polyvore, the social commerce company. From September 2007 until August 2009, Ms. Lake was an associate at Leader Ventures, a provider of venture loans to venture equity-backed companies. From September 2005 until September 2007, Ms. Lake worked at The Parthenon Group, a strategy consulting firm, where she consulted with a variety of e-commerce and traditional retailers. Ms. Lake holds a BS in economics from Stanford University and an MBA from Harvard Business School.

We believe Ms. Lake is qualified to serve on our Board because of her strategic insights as a start-up founder and CEO and her background and extensive experience in e-commerce and data analytics and with technology companies.

Matthew Maloney. Mr. Maloney, 40, has served as our Chief Executive Officer and a member of our Board since the Merger Date, and as our President since August 2015. Prior to the Merger, Mr. Maloney served as Chief Executive Officer and a member of the board of directors of Grubhub Holdings, a company he co-founded in 2004. Mr. Maloney led Grubhub Holdings through five rounds of investment funding, the acquisition of DotMenu, the Merger and our initial public offering in April 2014 (the "IPO"). Mr. Maloney currently serves as an advisory board member for The University of Chicago Booth School of Business Polsky Center for Entrepreneurship. He served on the board of directors of Merge Healthcare Incorporated, a provider of enterprise imaging software solutions, from August 2012 until Merge Healthcare was acquired by IBM in October 2015. He is a member of ChicagoNEXT, an organization dedicated to driving growth and opportunity in the Chicago business community, and serves on the Board of Trustees of the Museum of Science and Industry in Chicago. Mr. Maloney holds a B.A. from Michigan State University and an MBA and MSCS from the University of Chicago.

We believe that Mr. Maloney is qualified to serve as a member of our Board because of his perspective and experience as a co-founder of Grubhub Holdings, his technology development experience and his strategic insight into the Company, gained from his role as Chief Executive Officer.

Brian McAndrews. Brian McAndrews, 57, has served on our Board since the Merger Date. From October 2011 until the Merger Date, Mr. McAndrews served on the board of directors of Seamless. Mr. McAndrews served as Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of Pandora Media, Inc. ("Pandora"), an Internet radio provider, from September 2013 to March 2016. Mr. McAndrews served as a venture partner of Madrona Venture Group, LLC, a venture capital firm, from 2012 to September 2013, and as a Managing Director of Madrona from 2009 to 2011. From August 2007 to December 2008, Mr. McAndrews served as Senior Vice President, Advertiser and Publisher Solutions of the Microsoft Corporation. From 1999 to 2007, Mr. McAndrews served as CEO of aQuantive, a digital marketing services and technology company acquired by Microsoft in 2007. Mr. McAndrews is also a member of the board of directors, the nominating and corporate governance committee and the technology innovation committee (as Chair) of the New York Times Company, a multimedia news and information company. He previously served on the boards of directors of Fisher Communications, Inc. from 2006 to 2013, Clearwire Corporation from 2009 to 2013 and AppNexus Inc. from 2012 to 2013. Mr. McAndrews holds an A.B. in Economics from Harvard College and an MBA from the Stanford Graduate School of Business.

We believe that Mr. McAndrews is qualified to serve as a member of our Board because of his deep digital experience gained through his experience as a chief executive officer of public companies in the technology industry, as well as his private and public company director experience. His background in both traditional and digital media has also given him an understanding of digital advertising, mobile and the integration of emerging technologies, which is highly valued by the Company and our Board as the Company continues to expand its business.

#### INFORMATION REGARDING THE BOARD AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

#### Board Leadership Structure

We currently separate the roles of Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board. The Board has determined that having an independent director serve as Chairman of the Board is in the best interests of our stockholders at this time. The structure ensures a greater role for the independent directors in the oversight of the Company and active participation of the independent directors in setting agendas and establishing priorities and procedures for the work of the Board. The Board conducts an annual review to determine whether it and its committees are functioning effectively and recognizes that, depending on the circumstances, other leadership models might be appropriate.

#### Director Independence

Our Board has undertaken a review of the independence of each director. Based on information provided by each director concerning his or her background, employment, and affiliations, our Board has affirmatively determined that, with the exception of our CEO, Matthew Maloney, each of the current directors and director nominees does not have a relationship that would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director and is "independent" (as that term is defined under the applicable rules and regulations of the SEC and the NYSE listing standards). Our Board has also determined that each member of the Audit Committee is independent for purposes of serving on our Audit Committee, as determined in accordance with applicable NYSE listing standards and Rule 10A-3 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). Additionally, our Board has determined that each member of the Compensation Committee is independent for purposes of serving on our Compensation Committee, as determined in accordance with applicable NYSE listing standards and Rule 10C promulgated under the Exchange Act. In making these determinations, the Board considered the current and prior relationships that each non-employee director has with our Company and all other facts and circumstances the Board deemed relevant in determining independence, including the beneficial ownership of our common stock by each non-employee director, and the transactions involving them described in the section entitled "Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions."

Meetings of the Board and the Committees of the Board

Our Board met five times during the last fiscal year. The Audit Committee met 10 times, the Compensation Committee met four times and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee met seven times. During 2015, each Board member attended at least 75% of the aggregate number of meetings of the Board and of the committees on which he or she served, in each case during the periods that he or she served. Mr. Lakshman, Ms. Lake and Mr. Richman joined our Board in March 2015, December 2015 and February 2016, respectively, and therefore did not attend any meetings of the Board or its committees prior to his or her respective appointment.

We do not currently have a policy requiring directors to attend our annual meetings. Six of our then-current directors attended our 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

#### Executive Sessions of the Board

The Company's non-management directors regularly hold executive sessions of the Board without management present. Brian McAndrews, the independent Chairman of the Board, presides at the executive sessions of the independent directors.

Board and Committee Self-Evaluations

Each of the Board and its committees conducts a self-evaluation at least annually for the purpose of determining whether it and its committees are functioning effectively. These evaluations consider the performance of the Board or the committee, as the case may be, as a unit. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee oversees this evaluation process. Each committee reports the results of its self-evaluation to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee or the Board, as appropriate.

Committees of the Board of Directors

Our Board currently has three standing committees. The composition and responsibilities of each of the committees is described below. Members will serve on these committees until their resignation or until otherwise determined by our Board. Each of our Board committees operates under a written charter adopted by the Board. The committee charters are available on the Investor Relations section of our website at

http://investors.grubhub.com/investors/governance/overview. A printed copy of each charter is available upon request.

Nominating and

Compensation Corporate Governance

Independent Audit Committee Committee	Committee
ü	
ü	
ü	
ü	
ü	
ü	
sü	
	ü ü ü ü

= Chairman

= Member

= Financial Expert

- (1)J. William Gurley served as a member of our Board and the Audit Committee until his resignation, effective December 22, 2015.
- (2)Ms. Lake joined our Board and was appointed to the Audit Committee on December 22, 2015, upon Mr. Gurley's resignation.

(3)Mr. Richman joined our Board and was appointed to the Compensation Committee on February 12, 2016. Audit Committee

Our Audit Committee is currently composed of Messrs. Fisher and Sadrian and Ms. Lake, with Mr. Fisher serving as Chairman. Ms. Lake joined the Audit Committee on December 22, 2015, upon J. William Gurley's resignation from the Board. The composition of our Audit Committee meets the requirements for independence under applicable NYSE listing standards and SEC rules and regulations, including Rule 10A-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act. Each member of our Audit Committee meets the financial literacy requirements of NYSE listing standards. In addition, our Board has determined that Mr. Fisher is an "audit committee financial expert" within the meaning of Item 407(d) of Regulation S-K under the Exchange Act.

Our Audit Committee, among other things:

•selects a qualified firm to serve as the independent registered public accounting firm to audit our financial statements;

·helps to ensure the independence and performance of the independent registered public accounting firm;

•discusses the scope and results of the audit with the independent registered public accounting firm, and reviews, with management and the independent registered public accounting firm, our interim and year-end results of operations; •develops procedures for employees to submit concerns anonymously about questionable accounting or audit matters;

•reviews our policies on risk assessment and risk management;

•reviews related party transactions;

•obtains and reviews a report by the independent registered public accounting firm at least annually that describes our internal control procedures, any material issues with such procedures, and any steps taken to deal with such issues; and

•pre-approves (or, as permitted, approves) all audit and all permissible non-audit services, other than de minimis non-audit services, to be performed by the independent registered public accounting firm.

Our Audit Committee operates under a written charter that satisfies the applicable rules of the SEC and the listing standards of NYSE.

# Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with management the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015. The Audit Committee has discussed with Crowe Horwath LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, the matters required to be discussed by Auditing Standard No. 16, as adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board ("PCAOB") in Rule 3200T. The Audit Committee has also received the written disclosures and the letter from Crowe Horwath LLP required by the applicable PCAOB requirements for the independent accountant communications with audit committees concerning auditor independence, and has discussed the independence of Crowe Horwath LLP with that firm. Based on the foregoing, the Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that the audited financial statements be included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 for filing with the SEC.

Respectfully submitted by the Members of the Audit Committee:

David Fisher, Chairman

Katrina Lake

Justin Sadrian

**Compensation Committee** 

Our Compensation Committee is currently composed of Messrs. Fisher, Frink, Richman and Spero, with Mr. Spero serving as Chairman. Mr. Richman joined the Compensation Committee on February 12, 2016. The composition of our Compensation Committee meets the requirements for independence under applicable NYSE listing standards and SEC rules and regulations, including Rule 10C promulgated under the Exchange Act. Each member of the Compensation Committee is also a non-employee director, as defined pursuant to Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act, and an outside director, as defined pursuant to Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code (the "Code"). The purpose of the Compensation Committee is to discharge the responsibilities of the Board relating to compensation of our executive officers. Our Compensation Committee, among other things:

•reviews, approves and determines, or makes recommendations to the Board regarding, the compensation of our executive officers;

·administers our stock and equity incentive plans;

·reviews and approves and makes recommendations to the Board regarding incentive compensation and equity plans; and

·establishes and reviews general policies relating to compensation and benefits of our employees.

Our compensation committee operates under a written charter that satisfies the applicable rules of the SEC and the listing standards of the NYSE.

The Compensation Committee may delegate its authority to one or more subcommittees, consisting of one or more of its members, when the Compensation Committee deems it appropriate to do so in order to carry out its responsibilities.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

During fiscal year 2015, Messrs. Fisher, Frink and Spero (Chairman) served on our Compensation Committee. No member of the Compensation Committee was an officer or employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries during fiscal year 2015, and no member of the Compensation Committee was formerly an officer of the Company or any of

its subsidiaries or was a party to any related party transaction required to be disclosed under Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K. During fiscal year 2015, none of the executive officers of the Company served on the board of directors or on the compensation committee of any other entity that has or had executive officers serving as a member of the Board or Compensation Committee of the Company.

#### Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is currently composed of Messrs. McAndrews, Sadrian and Spero, with Mr. Sadrian serving as Chairman. The composition of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee meets the applicable requirements for independence under NYSE listing standards and SEC rules and regulations. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, among other things:

·identifies, evaluates and selects, or makes recommendations to the Board regarding, nominees for election to our Board of Directors and its committees;

·evaluates the performance of the Board and of individual directors;

• considers and makes recommendations to the Board regarding the composition of the Board and its committees; • reviews developments in corporate governance practices;

·evaluates the adequacy of our corporate governance practices and reporting; and

·develops and makes recommendations to the Board regarding corporate governance guidelines and matters. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee operates under a written charter that satisfies the applicable listing standards of the NYSE.

#### Procedure for Nominating Directors

The Board has delegated to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee the responsibility of identifying suitable candidates for nomination to the Board (including candidates to fill any vacancies that may occur) and assessing candidate qualifications in light of the policies and principles in the Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee charter. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has not adopted a written policy regarding stockholder nominations for directors. In accordance with our amended and restated bylaws, however, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider stockholder nominations for directors (see the section entitled "Stockholder Proposals" below). We did not receive any stockholder nominations or recommendations for any director in connection with the Annual Meeting. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will recommend prospective director candidates for the Board's consideration, including those nominated by stockholders, and review the prospective candidates' qualifications with the Board. The Board shall retain the ultimate authority to nominate a candidate for election by the stockholders as a director or to fill any vacancy that may occur. In identifying prospective director candidates, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may consider all facts and circumstances that it deems appropriate or advisable, including, among other things, the skills of the prospective director candidate, his or her depth and breadth of business experience or other background characteristics, his or her independence, factors relating to the composition of the Board (including its size and structure), principles of diversity and the needs of the Board. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee evaluates each director's performance based on the same factors it uses to determine new director qualifications.

The Board continues to evaluate the composition of the Board and the qualifications and expertise of its directors and has retained a third-party search firm to assist the committee in identifying director candidates. Since our IPO in April 2014, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has led the Board's efforts to identify and nominate new members of our Board following the resignations of Jonathan Zabusky, our former President, and J. William Gurley, in August 2015 and December 2015, respectively. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee nominated, and the Board appointed, Girish Lakshman, Katrina Lake and Keith Richman in March 2015, December 2015 and February 2016, respectively. These nominations and appointments reflect the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is relevant to bringing in highly qualified directors with expertise relevant to the Company, including experience in e-commerce, logistics, data analytics and emerging technologies.

Code of Ethics and Corporate Governance Guidelines

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all officers, directors and employees, including those officers responsible for financial reporting. We have also adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines, which, in conjunction with our certificate of incorporation, bylaws and charters of the committees of the Board, form the framework for our corporate governance. Both our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and our Corporate Governance Guidelines are available on our website at http://investors.grubhub.com. As required by law and in accordance with the requirements of Item 5.05 of Current Report on Form 8-K, we intend to disclose on our website any amendments to our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics as well as any waivers of its requirements.

Prohibition against Hedging and Pledging Transactions

Pursuant to the Company's insider trading policies, short sales of the Company's securities are prohibited. This prohibition also applies to buying or selling puts, calls, other derivative securities of the Company or any derivative securities that provide the economic equivalent of ownership of any of the Company's securities or an opportunity, direct or indirect, to profit from any change in the value of the Company's securities. In addition, pursuant to the Company's insider trading policies, pledging of the Company's securities as collateral for a loan (or modifying an existing pledge) is not permitted without the prior approval of the Audit Committee.

## Board's Role in Risk Oversight

The Board is engaged in risk management oversight. At the present time, the Board has not established a separate committee to facilitate its risk oversight responsibilities, but expects to continue to monitor and assess whether such a committee would be appropriate. Management is responsible for assessing risk and for day-to-day risk management activities. The Board executes its oversight for risk assessment and risk management both by acting directly and through its committees. More specifically, the Audit Committee assists the Board in its oversight of risk management and the process established to identify, measure, monitor, and manage risks, in particular major financial risks and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Compensation Committee assesses risks arising from our compensation policies and practices. The Board receives regular reports from management, as well as from the Audit Committee and Compensation Committee, regarding relevant risks and the actions taken by management to address them.

14

#### DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The following table details certain information with respect to the compensation of each of our non-employee directors for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015.

Director Compensation for the Year Ended December 31, 2015

	Fees Earned		
	or Paid in Cash	Option Awards	Total Compensation
Name <sup>(1)</sup>	(\$)	(\$) (2)(3)	(\$)
David Fisher	56,000	99,151	155,151
J. William Gurley <sup>(4)</sup>	40,000		40,000
Katrina Lake <sup>(5)</sup>		256,219	256,219
Girish Lakshman <sup>(6)</sup>	30,000	276,955	306,955
Brian McAndrews	63,000	99,151	162,151
Justin Sadrian	52,000		52,000
Benjamin Spero	53,000		53,000
Lloyd Frink	36,000	99,151	135,151

- (1)Excludes Matthew Maloney, who was an executive officer of the Company and did not receive additional compensation for his service as a director for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015. Mr. Maloney's compensation is reflected in the Summary Compensation Table in the section entitled "Executive Compensation" of this Proxy Statement. Mr. Richman joined our Board in February 2016 and therefore did not earn compensation in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015.
- (2) The amount in this column represents the aggregate grant date fair value of a stock option award granted during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 calculated in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, or ASC Topic 718. Assumptions used in the calculation of the grant date fair value are set forth in Note 9, Stock-Based Compensation, in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015.
- (3) The aggregate number of shares of common stock subject to outstanding stock options held by each director listed in the table above as of December 31, 2015 was as follows: (i) 62,494 shares for Mr. Fisher, (ii) 31,895 shares for Mr. Frink, (iii) 20,695 shares for Ms. Lake, (iv) 14,006 shares for Mr. Lakshman and (v) 116,061 shares for Mr. McAndrews.
- (4)J. William Gurley resigned from our Board, effective December 22, 2015.
- (5) Katrina Lake was appointed to the Board on December 22, 2015. In accordance with the Company's director compensation policy described below, the Board granted Ms. Lake an initial option grant of \$250,000 in value under the 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan.
- (6) Girish Lakshman was appointed to the Board on March 12, 2015. In accordance with the Company's director compensation policy described below, the Board granted Mr. Lakshman and initial option grant of \$250,000 in value under the 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan.
- Director Compensation Arrangements

Our current director compensation policy (the "Director Compensation Policy") provides independent directors with compensation for their services on our Board. In addition, our Director Compensation Policy provides independent directors who are not serving on our Board by virtue of his or her relationship with a significant institutional or

venture stockholder (each an "Unaffiliated Director"), with annual equity compensation. Under our current Director Compensation Policy, Messrs. Fisher, Frink, Lakshman, Richman and McAndrews and Ms. Lake are eligible to receive equity compensation for their Board and Board committee service.

#### Cash Compensation

Under our current Director Compensation Policy, our independent directors (which include all of our directors other than Mr. Maloney) receive the following cash compensation for Board and Board committee service, as applicable. The cash compensation is paid quarterly in arrears.

- •\$30,000 per year for service as chair of the Board of Directors;
- \$20,000 per year for service as the chair of the Audit Committee or Compensation Committee;
- \$12,000 per year for service as chair of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee;
- •\$10,000 per year for service as a member of the Audit Committee (other than as chair);

<sup>•\$30,000</sup> per year for service as a Board member;

•\$6,000 per year for service as a member of the Compensation Committee (other than as chair); and

•\$3,000 per year for service as a member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee (other than as chair).

Equity Compensation

Under the current Director Compensation Policy, the Company is authorized to grant an annual option grant of \$100,000 in value ("Annual Director Grant"), based on the Black-Scholes model, to each Unaffiliated Director, with a newly appointed Unaffiliated Director receiving his or her first Annual Director Grant at the first Board meeting following the first anniversary of such director's appointment to the Board. In addition, the Company is authorized to grant a newly appointed Unaffiliated Director with an initial option grant of \$250,000 in value ("Initial Grant"), based on the Black-Scholes model, upon appointment.

Directors are reimbursed for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with their service. Directors are also entitled to the protection provided by their indemnification agreements and the indemnification provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, as described in further detail below under "Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions."

16

# PROPOSAL NO. 2

## RATIFICATION OF THE SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT

### REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee has selected Crowe Horwath LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016 and recommends that stockholders vote for ratification of such selection. Although we are not required by law to obtain such ratification from our stockholders, we have determined that it is desirable to do so. If our stockholders do not ratify the selection of Crowe Horwath LLP, the Audit Committee may reconsider its selection. The Audit Committee, in its discretion, may appoint a new independent registered public accounting firm at any time during the year if the Audit Committee believes that such a change would be in the best interests of the Company and our stockholders.

Crowe Horwath LLP has audited our consolidated financial statements since September 2013. Prior to the Merger, Crowe Horwath LLP served as the auditor for Grubhub Holdings. We expect that representatives of Crowe Horwath LLP will be present at the Annual Meeting to respond to appropriate questions and to make a statement if they so desire.

#### Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The following table represents the aggregate fees billed to us for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 by Crowe Horwath LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm:

	Year Ended		
	December		
	31,		
	2015	2014	
	(in		
	thousa	inds)	
Audit Fees <sup>(1)</sup>	\$407	\$635	
Audit-Related Fees			
Tax Fees <sup>(2)</sup>		80	
Other Fees			
Total Fees	\$407	\$715	

(1) Audit Fees consist of fees and expenses for professional services provided in conjunction with the audit of our annual consolidated financial statements and the review of our quarterly consolidated financial statements. Audit fees for 2014 also include fees and expenses for professional services provided in conjunction with our IPO in April 2014 and our follow-on offering in September 2014.

(2) Tax Fees for 2014 consist of tax return preparation, tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning services. The Audit Committee considered whether the provision of services other than audit services is compatible with maintaining Crowe Horwath LLP's independence and concluded that it did not impact Crowe Horwath's independence.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The Audit Committee has established a policy governing our use of the services of our independent registered public accounting firm. Under the policy, the Audit Committee is required to pre-approve all audit and non-audit services

performed by the Company's independent registered public accounting firm to ensure that the provision of such services does not impair the public accounting firm's independence. In the fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Audit Committee pre-approved all fees described above.

# Vote Required

The affirmative vote of a "majority" of votes cast by holders of our shares of common stock present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting is required to ratify the appointment of Crowe Horwath LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016. Abstentions, including those by a bank or broker if you hold your shares in "street name," will have no effect on the outcome of the vote. If you are a beneficial owner whose shares are held of record by a broker, your broker has discretionary voting authority under NYSE rules to vote your shares on this Proposal No. 2, even if the broker does not receive voting instructions from you.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" the ratification of the selection of Crowe Horwath LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016.

# PROPOSAL NO. 3

## ADVISORY VOTE ON NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION

As required by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the "Dodd-Frank Act") and Schedule 14A of the Exchange Act, we are providing our stockholders with the opportunity to approve, by advisory vote, the compensation of our named executive officers, as disclosed in this Proxy Statement in accordance with the rules of the SEC.

This proposal, commonly referred to as the "say-on-pay" vote, gives our stockholders the opportunity to express their views on the compensation of our named executive officers. This vote is not intended to address any specific item of compensation or any specific named executive officer, but rather the overall compensation of all of our named executive officers and our executive compensation philosophy, objectives and program, as described in this Proxy Statement. Accordingly, we ask our stockholders to approve the compensation of our named executive officers, as disclosed pursuant to Item 402 of Regulation S-K of the Exchange Act in the section entitled "Executive Compensation" of this Proxy Statement, including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the compensation tables and the related narrative disclosure, by casting a non-binding advisory vote "FOR" the following resolution:

"RESOLVED, that the stockholders of Grubhub Inc. (the "Company") approve, on a non-binding advisory basis, the compensation of the Company's named executive officers, as disclosed pursuant to Item 402 of Regulation S-K, including the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, compensation tables and narrative discussion."

As an advisory vote, the result will not be binding on the Board or the Compensation Committee. The say-on-pay vote will, however, provide us with important feedback from our stockholders about our executive compensation philosophy, objectives and program. The Board and the Compensation Committee value the opinions of our stockholders and expect to take into account the outcome of the vote when considering future executive compensation decisions and when evaluating the Company's executive compensation program.

#### Vote Required

The affirmative vote of a "majority" of votes cast by holders of shares of our common stock present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting is required to approve, by advisory vote, the compensation of our named executive officers. "Broker non-votes" and abstentions will have no effect on the outcome of the vote.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" the approval, on a non-binding advisory basis, of the compensation of the Company's named executive officers, as disclosed in this Proxy Statement.

### PROPOSAL NO. 4

# ADVISORY VOTE ON THE FREQUENCY OF ADVISORY VOTES ON NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION

The Dodd-Frank Act and Schedule 14A of the Exchange Act also enable our stockholders to indicate, at least once every six years, how frequently we should seek an advisory vote on named executive officer compensation, such as Proposal No. 3 above. By voting on this Proposal No. 4, stockholders may indicate whether they would prefer an advisory vote on named executive compensation once every one, two or three years.

After careful consideration, our Board has determined that an advisory say-on-pay vote should be held annually. Our Board believes that holding a say-on-pay vote annually is the most appropriate option because it will give us more frequent feedback from our stockholders on our executive compensation philosophy, objectives and program, as well as the compensation paid to our named executive officers.

For the reasons discussed above, our Board recommends that you vote for every "1 Year" as the frequency of future say-on-pay votes.

#### Vote Required

You may cast your advisory vote on the frequency of future say-on-pay votes by choosing the option of "1 Year," "2 Years" or "3 Years," or you may abstain from voting on this Proposal No. 4. The option of "1 Year," "2 Years," or "3 Years" that receives the highest number of votes from holders of our common stock present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be deemed to be the frequency of future say-on-pay votes recommended by our stockholders. Abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on this proposal.

While our Board believes that its recommendation is appropriate at this time, the stockholders are not voting to approve or disapprove the recommendation, but are instead asked to recommend, on a non-binding advisory basis, whether the say-on-pay vote should be held once every year, two years or three years.

Our Board and our Compensation Committee value the opinions of our stockholders on this matter and, to the extent there is any significant vote in favor of one time period over another, will take into account the outcome of this vote when making decisions regarding the frequency of holding future say-on-pay votes. However, because this vote is advisory and not binding on the Company, the Board or the Compensation Committee in any way, the Board may decide that it is in the best interests of our stockholders and the Company to hold a say-on-pay vote more or less frequently than the option recommended by our stockholders.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote to hold future advisory votes on named executive officer compensation every "1 YEAR."

## EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Set forth below is a list and biographical information for each of our current executive officers (other than Matthew Maloney, who also serves as a member of our Board and whose biographical information is set forth above under the section entitled "Information Regarding Director Nominees and Current Directors").

Name	Age	Position
Matthew Maloney	40	Chief Executive Officer and President
Adam DeWitt	43	Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Stanley Chia	34	SVP, Operations
Barbara Martin Coppola	40	Chief Marketing Officer
Margo Drucker	51	Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Adam DeWitt. Mr. DeWitt has served as our Chief Financial Officer since the Merger Date. From November 2011 until the Merger Date, he served as Chief Financial Officer of Grubhub Holdings. From March 2007 to October 2011, he served as Chief Financial Officer of optionsXpress, and from March 2005 to March 2007, as Vice President of Finance, where he managed financial reporting, budgeting, investor relations and corporate development. Mr. DeWitt holds a B.A. in Economics from Dartmouth College.

Stanley Chia. Mr. Chia has served as our Senior Vice President, Operations, since March 2015. Before joining the Company, Mr. Chia worked at Amazon.com, the online retailer, as General Manager, Amazon Retail Toys and Games (April 2014 to April 2015) and Senior Leader, Worldwide Amazon Customer Excellence Systems (April 2013 to April 2014). From March 2010 until March 2013, he held various positions at Cisco Systems, Inc., the technology company, including Senior Manager, Customer Value Chain, Six Sigma and Ease of Doing Business Leader (March 2012 to March 2013), Six Sigma Leader – Customer Value Teams, Global Planning & Fulfillment, Software Licensing (March 2011 to March 2012) and Six Sigma Leader, Corporate Quality and Customer Value Teams (March 2010 to March 2011). Mr. Chia also served in the Singapore Armed Forces as an Armored Infantry Platoon Commander. Mr. Chia holds a B.S. in Industrial and Systems Engineering from Georgia Institute of Technology and an MBA from Emory University, Goizueta Business School.

Barbara Martin Coppola. Ms. Coppola has served as our Chief Marketing Officer since March 2015. Before joining the Company, Ms. Coppola spent seven years at Alphabet Inc., the technology company formerly known as Google. Ms. Coppola held the following marketing leadership positions at Google: Head of Marketing, Google Express (February 2014 to April 2015), Global Head of Product Marketing, YouTube (October 2013 to October 2014), Head of Product Marketing, Mobile and TV, YouTube (July 2012 to October 2013), Head of Chromecast and GoogleTV Marketing (July 2011 to April 2013), Director of Marketing for Google France (July 2008 to July 2011) and Senior Manager, B2B Marketing, Google France (March 2008 to July 2008). Before joining Google, Ms. Coppola worked for Samsung and Texas Instruments. Ms. Coppola also currently serves on the board of directors of WeddingWire Inc. Ms. Coppola holds an M.S. in Telecommunications Engineering from Universidad Politecnica de Madrid, an MS in Mobile Communications from E.N.S.T. (Telecom Paris), and an MBA in Business Administration and Management from INSEAD. She is also a graduate of the Advanced Management Program at Harvard Business School.

Margo Drucker. Ms. Drucker has served as our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since the Merger Date. From June 2012 until the Merger Date, Ms. Drucker served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of Seamless. From November 2005 to June 2012, she served as Senior Vice President and Senior Deputy General Counsel at Martha Stewart Living Omnimedia, Inc., where she oversaw all aspects of the legal department, including licensing, employment, SEC filings, corporate governance and litigation. Ms. Drucker holds a B.A. in History and Economics from Brown University and a J.D. from New York University School of Law.

Each executive officer serves at the discretion of our Board of Directors and holds office until his or her successor is duly elected and qualified or until his or her earlier resignation or removal, subject to the terms and conditions of any employment agreement by which the executive officer and the Company may be bound (as further described in the section entitled "Executive Compensation – Employment Agreements" below). There are no family relationships among any of our directors or executive officers.

### EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

### COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed with management the following Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of the Company's 2016 Proxy Statement. Based on this review and discussion, the Compensation Committee recommended to the Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in the Company's 2016 Proxy Statement.

Respectfully submitted by the Members of the Compensation Committee:

Benjamin Spero (Chair)

David Fisher

Lloyd Frink

Keith Richman<sup>(1)</sup>

(1)Mr. Richman was appointed to the Compensation Committee in February 2016. Consequently, Mr. Richman did not participate in the Compensation Committee's decisions regarding the compensation of our named executive officers (as defined below) in 2015.

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis is designed to provide our stockholders with an understanding of our executive compensation philosophy, objectives and program, as well as the compensation paid to our named executive officers ("NEOs"), which consist of our principal executive officer, principal financial officer and the three next most highly compensated executive officers as of December 31, 2015.

For 2015, our NEOs were:

Name	Position	
Matthew Maloney	Chief Executive Officer and President	
Adam DeWitt	Chief Financial Officer	
Stanley Chia <sup>(1)</sup>	SVP, Operations	
Barbara Martin Coppola <sup>(1)</sup>	Chief Marketing Officer	
Margo Drucker	SVP, General Counsel and Secretary	
(1) Mr. Chia and Ms. Copr	oola commenced employment with the C	ompany on March 30 2015

(1)Mr. Chia and Ms. Coppola commenced employment with the Company on March 30, 2015. Executive Summary

We are one of the nation's largest portfolios of online and mobile takeout food ordering and delivery services. Connecting diners to more than 40,000 restaurants in more than 1,000 U.S. cities and London, our platforms and services strive to make takeout better through innovative restaurant technology, easy-to-use platforms and an improved delivery experience. Our portfolio of brands includes Grubhub, Seamless, AllMenus, MenuPages, Restaurants on the Run ("RoTR"), DiningIn and Delivered Dish.

## 2015 Business Highlights

In 2015, we delivered another year of strong financial performance. This was driven by our platforms and services helping restaurants succeed and connecting diners with the food they love from their favorite local restaurants. Highlights of our company performance in 2015 include:

•revenue of \$361.8 million, representing a 43% year-over-year increase;

•net income of \$38.1 million or \$0.44 per diluted share, a 57% year-over-year increase;

·non-GAAP Adjusted EBITDA<sup>(1)</sup> of \$105.0 million, a 33% year-over-year increase;

•Active Diners<sup>(2)</sup> of 6.75 million, a 34% increase from 5.03 million Active Diners<sup>(2)</sup> in 2014;

·Daily Average Grubs<sup>(2)</sup> of 227,100, a 24% year-over-year increase from 182,800 Daily Average Grubs<sup>(2)</sup> in 2014;

·Gross Food Sales<sup>(2)</sup> of \$2.4 billion, a 32% year-over-year increase from \$1.8 billion processed in 2014;

•We expanded our delivery business to approximately \$200 million in annualized delivery Gross Food Sales in almost 50 markets; and

·We acquired three restaurant delivery services, RoTR, DiningIn and Delivered Dish.

Key 2015 Compensation Decisions

The Compensation Committee made the following 2015 compensation-related decisions for our NEOs, consisting of base salary increases, non-equity incentive compensation (pursuant to the 2015 Management Incentive Bonus program) and grants of long-term equity compensation in the form of stock options and restricted stock units ("RSUs").

			Long-Term Equity Compensation	
		Non-Equity		
	Base	Incentive	2015	
	Salary	Compensation	Grants	2015
	Increase	(as a % of	of Stock	Grants
	from	Target Bonus	Options	of RSUs
Name	2014(1)	Opportunity) <sup>(2)</sup>	$(#)^{(3)}$	$(#)^{(4)}$
Matthew Maloney	50.0%	91.2%	613,999	
Adam DeWitt	25.0%	91.2%	29,400	147,360
Stanley Chia		91.2%	28,027	71,017
Barbara Martin Coppola		91.2%	126,050	60,372
Margo Drucker	33.8%	91.2%	8,799	38,000

<sup>(1)</sup> In December 2014, the Compensation Committee adjusted the 2015 base salaries of our executive team, including our NEOs (other than Mr. Chia and Ms. Coppola who joined us in March 2015), to bring them to a market-competitive level as executive officers of a publicly traded company and due to their increased responsibilities following the IPO. For additional information, see "Compensation Components and 2015 Compensation Decisions — Base Salary" below.

 <sup>(1)</sup> For an explanation of Adjusted EBITDA as a measure of the Company's operating performance and a reconciliation to net income, see "Non-GAAP Financial Measure-Adjusted EBITDA" within Part II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.

<sup>(2)</sup> For a description of the Company's key metrics, including Active Diners, Daily Average Grubs and Gross Food Sales, see "Key Business Metrics" within Part II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015.

<sup>(2)</sup> In February 2016, the Compensation Committee approved performance-based cash awards under the 2015 Management Incentive Bonus program in an amount of 91.2% of each NEO's target annual cash bonus opportunity based on the level of achievement of pre-established corporate metrics and its assessment of each NEO's individual performance. For additional information, see "Compensation Components and 2015 Compensation Decisions — Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation — 2015 Management Incentive Bonus Program" below.

<sup>(3)</sup> The Compensation Committee granted options to purchase our common stock to Mr. DeWitt on January 7, 2015, to each of Mr. Chia and Ms. Coppola on May 12, 2015 as part of their new hire packages, and to each of Mr. Maloney, Ms. Coppola and Ms. Drucker on December 31, 2015. For additional information, see "Compensation Components and 2015 Compensation Decisions — Long-Term Equity Compensation" below.

<sup>(4)</sup> 

The Compensation Committee granted RSUs to Mr. Chia and Ms. Coppola on May 12, 2015 as part of their new hire packages, and to each of the NEOs (other than Mr. Maloney) on December 31, 2015. For additional information, see "Compensation Components and 2015 Compensation Decisions — Long-Term Equity Compensation" below.

CEO Reported Pay vs. Realizable Pay

There can be a significant difference between what is reported as compensation to an NEO for a given year in the Summary Compensation Table that follows this Compensation Discussion and Analysis and an NEO's realizable compensation as of December 31, 2015. This difference results from the fact that we are required to show the grant date fair value of equity and equity-based awards even though the ability of an NEO to realize value from such awards is contingent upon the sustained increase in the price of our common stock. Realizable compensation is not a substitute for reported compensation in evaluating our executive compensation program. However, we believe understanding realizable compensation is important as it reflects how our executive compensation program emphasizes pay-for-performance and how long-term equity compensation aligns the interests of our CEO with those of our stockholders. The compensation that our CEO actually receives, or is expected to receive, is dependent upon the performance of our common stock and therefore may be higher or lower than the amount we are required to report in the Summary Compensation Table.

The following graph reflects the "reported" and "realizable" compensation for our CEO in 2015. Our CEO's 2015 reported compensation, as reflected in the Summary Compensation Table, was \$8,277,116. By contrast, his 2015 realizable compensation was \$884,200, or 10.7% of his reported compensation. This difference results from the fact that in 2015, 89% of our CEO's total reported compensation was in the form of stock options. While the reported grant date fair value of the stock options was \$7,392,916, their actual value as of December 31, 2015 was \$0, as they were granted on this date and had no time to appreciate. The ability of our CEO to realize value from these stock options during the related service period is dependent upon whether and to what extent the stock price of our common stock over the four-year vesting period exceeds the exercise price of the options.

(1) "Reported Pay" includes (i) base salary, (ii) actual non-equity incentive plan compensation, (iii) the grant date fair value of long-term equity incentive compensation (Black Scholes for stock options) and (iv) other actual compensation, each as reported in the 2015 Summary Compensation Table.

(2) "Realizable Pay" includes (i) base salary, (ii) actual non-equity incentive plan compensation, (iii) the "in the money" value of long-term equity incentive compensation (stock options) granted in 2015 as of December 31, 2015 and (iv) other actual compensation.

What We Do Not Do

Advancing our Compensation Practices through Effective Corporate Governance

We have adopted corporate governance practices and policies that our Board believes help to advance our compensation goals, including:

#### What We Do

- üMaintain a Completely Independent Compensation Committee. We maintain a Compensation Committee comprised solely of independent directors who establish our compensation practices.
- üUse a Pay-for-Performance Model. Our executive compensation program focuses on the achievement of corporate results and individual performance.

ü Separate the Chairman and CEO Roles. Our Chairman of the Board is an independent director and not an employee.

üRetain an Independent Compensation Consultant. Our Compensation Committee has engaged an independent compensation consultant, Compensia Inc. ("Compensia"), as its advisor to provide analysis, advice and guidance on executive compensation independent of management.

üUse Variable Pay and Long-Term Equity Incentive Awards as a Substantial Portion of Total

Compensation. Variable-based compensation, including cash and equity incentives, made up approximately 93% of our CEO's, and approximately 88% of our other NEOs' total target compensation for 2015. Equity awards, including time-based options and RSUs, made up approximately 89% of our CEO's, and approximately 84% of our other NEOs' total compensation for 2015.

üEmploy our Executive Officers "at will."

No Defined Benefit Retirement Programs. We do not offer pension arrangements, defined benefit retirement plans, or non-qualified deferred compensation plans to our executive officers. No Perquisites or Other Personal Benefits. Unless they serve a sound business purpose, we do not generally provide special perquisites and other personal benefits to our NEOs other than benefits that are generally available to all of our employees, such as our 401(k) plan, group health insurance, and short-and long-term disability insurance. No Excise Tax "Gross-Ups" or Payments. We do not provide any excise tax "gross-up" or tax reimbursement in connection with any change in control or benefits. No Stock Option Exchanges or Repricing. Our commitment to stockholder alignment is reflected in the terms of our 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan that does not allow for stock option exchanges or the repricing of outstanding stock options without obtaining stockholder approval. No Guaranteed Salary Increases or Incentive Bonuses. None of our NEOs is guaranteed a salary increase. Salary increases are evaluated

increase. Salary increases are evaluated annually. With the exception of one newly hired NEO, performance-based bonuses for our NEOs are based on the actual achievement of corporate metrics and individual performance goals that are set by the Compensation Committee at the beginning of each fiscal year.

No Hedging or Short Sales; No Pledging without Prior Approval. All of our employees and our directors are prohibited from engaging in short sales or transactions involving derivative securities, including hedging transactions. All of our employees and our directors are prohibited from pledging their equity as collateral for loans except with the prior approval of the Audit Committee.

No "Single Trigger" Change of Control Severance Benefits. With the exception of one option grant to an NEO in 2012 before the IPO and the Merger, we do not provide "single trigger" change of control Executive Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

severance benefits to our NEOs.

Our executive compensation philosophy is to provide a compensation program that attracts and retains talented executives, including our NEOs, and to motivate and reward them to meet or exceed our short-term and long-term strategic objectives, while simultaneously creating sustainable long-term value for our stockholders. We strive to create an executive compensation program that is competitive, rewards achievement of our strategic objectives, and aligns our executives' interests with those of our stockholders.

Our executive compensation program is designed to achieve the following principal objectives:

• attract, retain and motivate talented executives to support Grubhub's growth and strategic objectives by providing compensation that is competitive with the market;

•ensure that a substantial portion of each NEO's total compensation is "at-risk" and varies based on the achievement of specific Company objectives and the assessment of individual performance; and

·align the executive compensation program with both short-term and long-term stockholder interests.

As our needs evolve and as circumstances require, we intend to reevaluate our executive compensation philosophy, principal objectives and programs.

Compensation Practices and Risk

Our Compensation Committee believes that our executive compensation program is appropriately designed to achieve its objectives; reasonable in light of the executive compensation programs of companies with whom we compete for talent; and responsible in that it encourages our executive officers to work for meaningful stockholder returns. The Compensation Committee does not believe our executive compensation program encourages unnecessary or excessive risk. See the section entitled "Board's Role in Risk Oversight" above for an additional discussion of risk considerations.

**Compensation Decision Process** 

Role of the Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee, consisting of entirely independent directors, is primarily responsible for executive compensation decisions, including reviewing, evaluating and approving the compensation arrangements, plans, policies and practices for our NEOs and overseeing and administering our cash-based and equity-based compensation plans.

Each year, the Compensation Committee conducts an evaluation of our executive compensation program to determine if any changes are appropriate. In making these determinations, the Compensation Committee may consult with its independent compensation consultant and management, as described below; however, the Compensation Committee uses its own judgment in making final decisions regarding the compensation paid to our executive officers.

### Role of Independent Compensation Consultant

Our Compensation Committee has the authority to select and retain the services of its own independent compensation consultant and annually reviews the performance of the selected consultant. As part of the review process, the Compensation Committee assesses the independence and the existence of conflicts of interest of the consultant in accordance with applicable NYSE and SEC rules. In 2015, the Compensation Committee engaged the services of Compensia, a compensation consulting firm. Compensia reports directly to the Compensation Committee. During 2015, Compensia did not provide any other services to us and worked with our management, as directed by the Compensation Committee, only on matters for which the Compensation Committee is responsible. The Compensation Committee has evaluated the independence of Compensia and whether any conflicts of interest with management exist in accordance with applicable NYSE and SEC rules. The Compensation Committee has concluded that Compensia is independent and that no such conflicts of interest exist.

At the Compensation Committee's request, Compensia occasionally attends Compensation Committee meetings. Compensia also communicates with the Chairman of the Compensation Committee (outside of committee meetings) regarding matters related to the Compensation Committee's responsibilities. In 2015, the Compensation Committee generally sought input from Compensia on, among other things, reviewing and developing a comparative framework of peer companies and conducting a competitive assessment of the total direct compensation of our Chief Executive Officer and other members of the senior leadership team. Compensia also provided general observations about the Company's compensation programs and management recommendations regarding the amount and form of compensation for our executive officers.

In 2014, the Compensation Committee engaged Board Advisory LLC, a compensation consultant ("Board Advisory"). Board Advisory assisted the Compensation Committee in composing a preliminary peer group and assessing the total direct compensation of the Company's executive team by reviewing competitive market data.

Role of the Chief Executive Officer

Our Compensation Committee works closely with members of our executive team, especially our Chief Executive Officer, to manage and develop our executive compensation program. At the Compensation Committee's request, our Chief Executive Officer provides input regarding the performance and appropriate compensation of the other executive officers because of his direct knowledge of each executive officer's performance and contributions. Our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer are also involved in making recommendations to the Compensation Committee on establishing new hire packages. From time to time, our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and General Counsel attend meetings (or portions of meetings) of the Compensation Committee to present information and answer questions. None of our NEOs is present during voting or deliberations by the Compensation Committee regarding his or her own compensation.

Use of Competitive Market Data

As part of its deliberations, the Compensation Committee considers competitive market data on executive compensation levels and practices. To review the compensation of our executives, including our NEOs, our Compensation Committee, with the assistance of Compensia in 2015 and Board Advisory in 2014, reviewed a combination of data drawn from a select group of peer companies and survey data.

In October 2015, the Compensation Committee approved the following peer group for use in connection with its compensation determinations and recommendations. The peer group was developed with the assistance of Compensia and consists of U.S.-based, stand-alone, publicly traded companies in the internet software and services, internet retail and systems software industries with a market cap of approximately .25-4x Grubhub and revenues of approximately .5-2x Grubhub that, in the Compensation Committee's view, compete with Grubhub for executive talent.

Bankrate Inc.	j2 Global, Inc.	Tableau Software Inc.
Constant Contact, Inc.	LendingClub Corp.	TripAdvisor, Inc.
CoStar Group Inc.	LogMeIn, Inc.	TrueCar, Inc.
Demandware Inc.	NetSuite Inc.	WebMD Health Corp.
Groupon, Inc.	Pandora Media, Inc.	Yelp Inc.
HomeAway, Inc.	Shutterstock, Inc.	Zillow Group, Inc.

Our Compensation Committee believes that peer group comparisons are useful guides to measure the competitiveness of our compensation practices. The Compensation Committee, however, does not set compensation components to meet specific benchmarks as compared to peer companies, such as targeting salaries at a specific market percentile. The Compensation Committee believes that over-reliance on benchmarking can result in compensation that is unrelated to the value delivered by our executive officers because compensation benchmarking does not take into account the specific performance of the executive officers or the relative size and performance of Grubhub. The Compensation Committee's executive compensation determinations are subjective and the result of the Compensation Committee subjective and the result of the Compensation Committee as well as input from, and peer group data provided by, Compensia.

Compensation Components and 2015 Compensation Decisions

The three primary components of our executive compensation program are: (1) base salary, (2) non-equity incentive compensation and (3) long-term equity incentive compensation in the form of stock options and RSUs, as described in more detail below. Historically, including for 2015, the compensation decisions for our executive officers have been highly individualized and based on a variety of factors. In particular, we have emphasized the use of equity to incentivize our executive officers to focus on our growth and create long-term stockholder value. To date, the Compensation Committee has not adopted any formal or informal policies for allocating compensation between long-term and short-term compensation or between cash and equity compensation.

In 2015, the mix of total target direct compensation for our CEO and our other NEOs was as follows:

CEO Pay Mix\* NEO Pay Mix\*

\* Reflects salary, target non-equity incentive plan compensation and the grant date fair values of long-term equity incentives received in 2015.

Base Salary

Base salaries provide our executive officers with a competitive level of fixed compensation and, in conjunction with long-term equity incentive awards, are a significant motivating factor in attracting and retaining our executive officers. Base salary rewards individual performance, level of experience and expected future performance and contributions to Grubhub.

Each NEO's initial base salary was established as a result of arm's-length negotiation with the individual at the time of hiring, taking into account subjective judgments as to the executive officer's qualifications, experience, job responsibilities, prior salary and internal pay equity comparisons.

Our Compensation Committee oversees the review of the base salaries of our NEOs on an annual basis, taking into account the recommendations of our CEO (except with respect to his own base salary), and makes adjustments as it determines to be reasonable and necessary to reflect the scope of an NEO's responsibilities, experience and performance, competitive data from our peer group, and overall Company performance. Adjustments to base salaries generally become effective in the first quarter of the year following completion of our annual performance review process. Adjustments to base salaries may also occur at other times in the year as a result of a promotion or a significant change in responsibilities.

In December 2014, the Compensation Committee increased the base salary for each of Messrs. Maloney and DeWitt and Ms. Drucker to market-competitive levels following our IPO. These salary adjustments were effective February 1, 2015. In approving the base salary increases, the Compensation Committee considered each executive's contribution to the Company and total target compensation, the Company's transition from a private to a public company and the increased demands placed on the executive officers as a result of the IPO and the Company's growth. The Compensation Committee also considered competitive market data provided by Board Advisory. Mr. Chia and Ms. Coppola joined Grubhub on March 30, 2015 and therefore their 2015 salaries were approved by the Board and were the result of arm's-length negotiations during the hiring process, as well as the factors described above.

The following table sets forth the base salaries for our NEOs in 2015 and the percentage change from 2014.

	2014	2015	
	Base	Base	%
Named Executive Officer	Salary	Salary	Change
Matthew Maloney	\$400,000	\$600,000	50%
Adam DeWitt	\$300,000	\$375,000	25%
Stanley Chia	_	\$275,000	_
Barbara Martin Coppola		\$333,000	_
Margo Drucker	\$275,000	\$368,000	34%

In January 2016, the Compensation Committee conducted an annual review of the base salaries of our executive officers, taking into consideration competitive market analysis performed by Compensia and the recommendations of our CEO (except with respect to his own base salary), and determined to adjust the base salary of each of our NEOs. The Compensation Committee also reviewed each executive's total target compensation, taking into account each compensation component and the relative weight of "fixed" versus "at risk" pay. The following table sets forth the base salary for our NEOs in 2016 and the percentage change from 2015. These base salary adjustments became effective January 1, 2016.

		%
	2016	Change
	Base	from
Named Executive Officer	Salary	2015
Matthew Maloney	\$620,000	3.33%
Adam DeWitt	\$400,000	6.67%
Stanley Chia	\$285,000	3.64%
Barbara Martin Coppola	\$345,000	3.60%
Margo Drucker <sup>(1)</sup>	\$351,500	(4.48%)

<sup>(1)</sup>In adjusting Ms. Drucker's base salary for 2016, the Compensation Committee took into account the increase in her target annual cash incentive opportunity (as a percentage of salary) from 30% to 40%.

Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation

Grubhub provides short-term incentive compensation through the use of annual, performance-based cash incentive bonus programs. These programs are designed to motivate our executive officers to achieve performance goals, including both corporate and individual performance, and to reward them for their achievements. Payment of these bonuses depends on the achievement of corporate financial and individual performance goals.

2015 Management Incentive Bonus Program

Our Compensation Committee approved the 2015 Management Incentive Bonus ("MIB") program in March 2015. At this time, the Compensation Committee set the target annual cash incentive opportunity for each of our NEOs as a percentage of base salary as of fiscal year end and approved corporate performance targets for (i) Gross Food Sales, (ii) Revenue and (iii) adjusted EBITDA, with a relative weighting of 40%, 40% and 20%, respectively. Consistent with our incentive compensation philosophy, our Compensation

Committee established the Company performance targets in early 2015 with the goal of being challenging but achievable only through exemplary performance.

The table below reflects the pre-established corporate performance targets, the Company's 2015 actual results and the level of performance achievement (as a percentage).

		2015 4 / 1 0 1/	Level of Performance
Corporate Performance Metric	Corporate Performance Targets	2015 Actual Results	Achievement
Gross Food Sales	\$2.5 billion	\$2.4 billion	90%
Revenues	\$372 million	\$362 million	90%
Adjusted EBITDA	\$117 million	\$105 million	85%
			89%
			(average)

Payouts under the 2015 MIB Program were based 80% on the achievement of corporate metrics and 20% on the assessment of individual performance. Each corporate metric could be achieved between 80% and 120% of the target. If the Company achieved less than 80% of a pre-established corporate metric, then no payout would have been made under such metric, subject to the discretion of the Compensation Committee. The definition (and related reconciliation to the closest GAAP measure) for each of "Gross Food Sales" and "adjusted EBITDA" can be found in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015. The corporate metrics were achieved at an average rate of 89% of the pre-established targets. The Compensation Committee determined that each of the NEOs achieved 100% of their individual performance objectives.

Following a review of the performance metrics, and weighting achievement of the applicable corporate performance metrics and individual objectives, the Compensation Committee made the following payouts to the NEOs under the 2015 MIB Program:

		Target		
		Annual Cash		
	Target	Incentive	Actual	
	Annual Cash	Opportunity	Cash	Percentage
	Incentive	(as % of	Incentive	of Actual
Named Executive Officer	Opportunity	Base Salary)	Payout	vs. Target
Matthew Maloney	\$ 300,000	50%	\$273,600	91.2%
Adam DeWitt	\$ 187,500	50%	\$171,000	91.2%
Stanley Chia	\$ 103,973	(1) 50%	\$94,823	(1) 91.2%
Barbara Martin Coppola	\$ 125,901	(1) 50%	\$114,822	(1) 91.2%
Margo Drucker	\$ 110,400	30%	\$100,685	91.2%

(1)Mr. Chia and Ms. Coppola's target annual cash incentive opportunity and actual cash incentive payout were prorated, as they joined Grubhub on March 30, 2015. For 2015 and 2016, Mr. Chia is guaranteed a bonus of at least \$50,000.

2016 Management Incentive Bonus Program

On March 3, 2016, upon recommendation of the Compensation Committee, the Board established the parameters for the 2016 MIB Program to continue to motivate our executive officers to achieve the Company's corporate performance targets. The Compensation Committee also set the target bonus opportunity (as a percentage of annual base salary) at 50% for each of Messrs. Maloney, DeWitt, Chia and Ms. Coppola and 40% for Ms. Drucker.

Long-Term Incentive Compensation

Long-term incentive compensation comprises an integral component of our executive compensation program. Our Compensation Committee recognizes that our executive officers have a significant impact on our success and on the creation of long-term stockholder value. To align their interests with those of our stockholders, we use equity awards, including stock options and RSUs, to provide long-term incentive compensation to our executive officers. The Compensation Committee also uses equity awards as a means of ensuring that our overall compensation packages are attractive relative to those companies with which we compete for executive talent, including the companies in our peer group. Accordingly, the Compensation Committee believes equity awards are critical to our ability to attract, retain and motivate executive talent.

We and, prior to the Merger, Grubhub Holdings Inc. and Seamless North America, LLC, have used stock options as the primary component of our executive compensation program for all employees, including our NEOs. We believe this approach has allowed us to attract and retain key talent in our industry and has aligned our executive team's focus and contributions with our long-term interests and those of our stockholders. The Compensation Committee grants stock options with an exercise price that is equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant, which is the closing market price of our common stock on the NYSE. Stock options will have value to our executive officers only if the fair market value of our common stock increases after the date of grant.

Beginning in 2015, we introduced RSUs into our employee and executive compensation program. This decision was based on our assessment of market conditions and comparative market data provided by Compensia, and our belief that RSUs deliver more predictable value than stock options due to the recent volatility of our common stock. RSUs provide an important tool for us to motivate and retain our executive officers. In addition, we believe that RSUs align the interests of our executive officers with the long-term interests of our stockholders, as their value is directly tied to the market price of our common stock.

Stock options and RSUs generally vest over a four-year period, with 25% vesting after one year and the remainder vesting thereafter over 36 months in equal monthly installments, subject generally to continued service to the Company. These vesting requirements are intended to encourage executive officers to focus on long-term stockholder value creation and to serve our long-term retention objectives.

Adam DeWitt Option Award

On January 7, 2015, the Compensation Committee approved a grant of 29,400 options to Mr. DeWitt under the 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan in light of his increased responsibilities in connection with and following our IPO, including his oversight of the Company's customer care function. The options have an exercise price of \$37.21, the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant. The options vested as to 25% of the underlying shares on January 1, 2016 and have vested and will continue to vest in equal installments for the 36 consecutive months thereafter, subject to Mr. DeWitt's continued service to the Company.

New Hire Awards - Stanley Chia and Barbara Martin Coppola

Mr. Chia and Ms. Coppola joined us in March 2015. Mr. Chia, SVP, Operations, spearheads our delivery efforts and oversees our restaurant network, data operations and business development teams, and Ms. Coppola, Chief Marketing Officer, oversees our marketing department, focusing on brand affinity and user adoption.

On May 12, 2015, the Compensation Committee granted Mr. Chia and Ms. Coppola equity awards under the 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan with an aggregate value of \$1,000,000 and \$2,000,000, respectively, 50% in RSUs and 50% in options. The purpose of these grants was largely to attract these executives to leave their then-current employment and join Grubhub, as well as to align their interests with those of our stockholders. The RSUs vested as to 50% on April 1, 2016 and will vest monthly thereafter in equal amounts for 12 months, subject to the executive officer's continued service to the Company. The options will vest and become exercisable in 24 equal installments on the first day of the month beginning May 1, 2017, subject to the executive officer's continued service to the Company. The options have an exercise price of \$39.70, the fair market value of our common stock on the day of grant.

	Number	
	of	Number
	Option	of
Named Executive Officer	Awards	RSUs
Stanley Chia	28,027	12,687
Barbara Martin Coppola	56,054	25,374

Annual Equity Awards

On December 31, 2015, the Compensation Committee granted long-term equity awards under the 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan to our NEOs, consisting of stock options and/or RSUs (the "December Grant"), with relative weightings of three options to each RSU and each NEO's grant composition reflecting his or her preference. The December Grant was the first equity grant to our CEO since our IPO. The size of these awards reflects our Compensation Committee's determination of the need to provide substantial equity opportunities for retention purposes and to motivate our executive officers to achieve our strategic objectives.

In determining the value of each executive officer's equity award, the Compensation Committee took into consideration the recommendations of our CEO (except with respect to his own equity award), comparative market data provided by Compensia, the existing equity holdings of each executive officer (including the current economic value of his or her unvested equity awards) and the need to retain and motivate our executive officers. The Compensation Committee generally gives significant weight to the CEO's recommendations, as he is the most familiar with each executive officer's performance and contribution to the Company. The Compensation Committee also took into account the other equity awards Messrs. DeWitt and Chia and Ms. Coppola received in 2015, which are described above. Ultimately, the Compensation Committee applied its discretion and business judgment to determine the appropriate size of each executive officer's equity award.

Each of the December Grants vests as to 25% on January 1, 2017 and the remainder vests monthly in equal installments for 36 months thereafter, subject to the executive officer's continued service to the Company. The options have an exercise price of \$24.20, the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant.

The grant date fair value of the RSUs and/or options granted to each of NEOs on December 31, 2015 is set forth below:

				Stock
		RSU	Stock	Options
	RSUs	Grant Date	Options	Grant Date
	Granted	Fair Value	Granted	Fair Value
Named Executive Officer	(#)	(\$)	(#)	(\$)
Matthew Maloney		_	613,999	7,392,916
Adam DeWitt	147,360	3,566,112		_
Stanley Chia	58,330	1,411,586	_	
Barbara Martin Coppola	34,998	846,952	69,996	842,794
Margo Drucker	38,000	919,600	8,799	105,945

Each of the equity agreements covering the December Grants contains a "double trigger" change of control provision, pursuant to which, if any of the NEO's employment is terminated by the Company without "cause" (as defined in the 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan) or by the NEO for "good reason" within the period beginning 45 days prior to and ending 12 months after the occurrence of a Change of Control (as defined in the 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan), then:

 $\cdot$  any then-unvested RSUs granted under the December Grants shall vest; and

 $\cdot$  any then-unvested options granted under the December Grants shall vest and become exercisable for a period of at least three months.

"Good Reason" is defined as (i) a diminution in base salary of greater than ten percent (10%) (in all cases, other than in connection with a diminution in base salary that is proportionately applied to all senior executives of the Company); (ii) a change in the geographic location at which the individual provides services to the Company by more than fifty (50) miles (provided that moving the Company's corporate headquarters shall not constitute a change in geographic location, so long as the executive continues to be able to provide services to the Company from a location not more than fifty (50) miles from Chicago or New York, as applicable); or (iii) a material diminution of the executive's title or reporting relationship.

Other Compensation.

Other Executive Benefits

As a general practice, we provide benefits to our executive officers on the same basis as these benefits are provided to our other eligible employees, including health, dental, vision, life and disability insurance benefits. Our executive officers may also participate in a defined contribution plan that is qualified under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. In 2015, we matched 100% of the first 3% of employees' contributions and 50% of the next 2% of employees' contributions that were made, up to a maximum of \$10,600 for "highly compensated employees" (as defined by the Internal Revenue Service).

Perquisites and Other Personal Benefits

We do not provide perquisites to our named executive officers, except in situations where we believe it is appropriate to assist an individual in the performance of his or her duties, for recruitment and retention purposes, or consistent with benefits provided to our other full-time employees. During 2015, none of the NEOs received perquisites or other personal benefits of \$10,000 or more, in the aggregate, other than Mr. Chia and Ms. Coppola who each received relocation benefits. For additional information on perquisites and other benefits, see the "Summary Compensation Table" below.

**Compensation-Related Policies** 

Policy regarding Hedging and Pledging of the Company's Securities

Pursuant to our insider trading policies, our directors and our employees, including our executive officers, are prohibited from engaging in short sales of the Company's securities. This prohibition also applies to buying or selling puts, calls, other derivative securities of the Company or any derivative securities that provide the economic equivalent of ownership of any of the Company's securities or an opportunity, direct or indirect, to profit from any change in the value of the Company's securities. Pledging of the Company's securities as collateral for a loan (or modifying an existing pledge) is not permitted without the prior approval of the Audit Committee.

Stock Ownership Guidelines and Compensation Recovery Policies

Because of the significant equity holdings of our NEOs, especially our CEO, we have not adopted stock ownership guidelines with respect to our named executive officers. In addition, we do not presently have a compensation recovery policy for our NEOs, but we will comply with the requirements of the Dodd-Frank Act and adopt a compensation recovery policy to the extent required by law once the SEC adopts final regulations on the subject.

### Tax and Accounting Treatment of Compensation

#### Deductibility of Executive Compensation

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code places a \$1 million limit on the amount of compensation a company can deduct in any one year for compensation paid to the chief executive officer and the three most highly-compensated executive officers employed by the company at the end of the year (other than the chief financial officer). However, the \$1 million deduction limit generally does not apply to compensation that is performance-based and provided under a stockholder-approved plan. While the Compensation Committee considers the deductibility of awards as one factor in determining executive compensation, the Compensation Committee also looks at other factors in making its decisions, as noted above, and retains the flexibility to award compensation that it determines to be consistent with the goals of our executive compensation program even if the awards are not deductible by Grubhub for tax purposes.

#### Taxation of "Parachute" Payments and Deferred Compensation

We did not provide any current executive officer, including any named executive officer, with a "gross-up" or other reimbursement payment for any tax liability that he or she might owe as a result of the application of Sections 280G, 4999, or 409A of the Code during 2015, and we have not agreed and are not otherwise obligated to provide any named executive officer with such a "gross-up" or other reimbursement. Sections 280G and 4999 of the Code provide that executive officers and directors who hold significant equity interests and certain other service providers may be subject to an excise tax if they receive payments or benefits in connection with a change in control that exceeds certain prescribed limits, and that the company, or a successor, may forfeit a deduction on the amounts subject to this additional tax. Section 409A also imposes additional significant taxes on the individual in the event that an executive officer, director or other service provider receives "deferred compensation" that does not meet the requirements of Section 409A of the Code.

#### Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

We follow Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718 ("ASC Topic 718") to account for the expense of our stock-based awards. ASC Topic 718 requires companies to measure the compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees and directors, including stock options and RSUs, based on the grant date "fair value" of these awards. This calculation is performed for accounting purposes and reported in the compensation tables below, even though our named executive officers may never realize any value from their awards. ASC Topic 718 also requires companies to recognize the compensation cost of their stock-based compensation awards in their income statements over the period that a named executive officer is required to render service in exchange for the option or other award.

#### EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION TABLES

#### Summary Compensation Table

The following table summarizes the compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to our named executive officers for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013. Amounts for the period of time prior to the Merger in 2013 reflect compensation earned by Messrs. Maloney and DeWitt in connection with their Grubhub Holdings Inc. ("Grubhub Holdings") employment and compensation earned by Ms. Drucker prior to the Merger in connection with her Seamless North America, LLC ("Seamless") employment. Mr. Chia and Ms. Coppola joined Grubhub on March 30, 2015 and therefore they did not receive compensation from us in fiscal 2014 or 2013.

	Base			Option	Non-Equity Incentive Plan	All Other	
	Salary	Bonus <sup>(1)</sup>	Stock	Awards <sup>(2)</sup>	Compensation	n@ompensat	ion <b>F</b> otal
Name and Principal			Awards <sup>(2)</sup>				
Position	Year (\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)	(\$)
Matthew Maloney	2015 600,000			7,392,916	273,600	10,600	8,277,116
Chief Executive Officer,	2014 400,000			2,960,528	220,000	10,400	3,590,928
President and Director	2013 265,000			407,668		10,159	682,827
Adam DeWitt	2015 375,000	_	3,566,112	514,153	171,000	10,600	4,636,865
Chief Financial Officer	2014 300,000	_		1,315,790	168,000	10,400	1,794,190
and Treasurer	2013 300,000	300,000		102,264		14,750	717,014
Stanley Chia	2015 208,160	50,000	1,915,260	496,933	44,823	72,938	2,788,114
Senior Vice President,							
Operations							
Barbara Martin Coppola	2015 228,097		1,854,299	1,836,659	114,822	29,481	4,063,359
Chief Marketing Officer							
Margo Drucker	2015 368,000	_	919,600	105,945	100,685	10,600	1,504,830
Senior Vice President,	2014 275,000	—		665,790	90,750	10,400	1,041,940
General Counsel and							
Secretary	2013 245,000	_			18,400	10,200	273,600
	\$200.000 · · ·	1	1 * 1	· 1	1 20 201		

(1)Mr. DeWitt received a \$300,000 retention bonus, which was paid on November 29, 2013. Mr. Chia was guaranteed a minimum bonus of \$50,000 under the Management Incentive Bonus program for 2015.

- (2) The amounts shown in these columns represent the aggregate grant date fair value of RSUs and option awards granted during the fiscal year. The amounts are valued in accordance with ASC Topic 718, Compensation Stock Based Compensation. Assumptions used in the calculation of the grant date fair value are set forth in Note 9, Stock-Based Compensation, in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015. Regardless of such RSUs' or option awards' fair value on the grant date, the actual value that may be recognized by the NEO will depend on the market value of the Company's common stock on the date when such RSUs vest and such options vest and are exercised. See "Long-Term Incentive Compensation" above for a description of the equity awards, in the form of stock options and RSUs, granted to each of our NEOs in 2015.
- (3) The amounts shown in this column represent payments made for the 2015 fiscal year under the Company's Management Incentive Bonus program according to the 2015 performance criteria set by the Compensation Committee and used to determine whether and to what extent the NEOs would receive payments under the 2015 plan. These amounts were paid in February 2016. See "Long-Term Equity Incentive Compensation 2015 Management Incentive Bonus Program" above for a description of our 2015 Management Incentive Bonus

program.

(4) The amounts reported in this column for Messrs. Maloney and DeWitt and Ms. Drucker consist of the 401(k) company matching contributions made for each NEO in 2015 and \$2,292 of 401(k) company matching contribution for Mr. Chia in 2015. The column also includes reimbursed moving expenses in 2015 for Mr. Chia and Ms. Coppola of \$70,647 and \$29,481, respectively.

#### Grants of Plan-Based Awards

		Restricted Stock	Option	Exercise Price of Option Awards	Grant Date Fair Value of Stock and Option Awards
Named Executive Officer	Grant Date	Units	Awards	(\$/share)	(\$) <sup>(1)</sup>
Matthew Maloney	12/31/2015		613,999	24.20	7,392,916
Adam DeWitt	12/31/2015	147,360			3,566,112
	1/7/2015		29,400	37.21	514,153
Stanley Chia	12/31/2015	58,330			1,411,586
	5/12/2015	12,687			503,674
	5/12/2015		28,027	39.70	496,933
Barbara Martin Coppola	12/31/2015	34,998			846,952
	12/31/2015		69,996	24.20	842,794
	5/12/2015	25,374			1,007,348
	5/12/2015		56,054	39.70	993,865
Margo Drucker	12/31/2015	38,000			919,600
	12/31/2015		8,799	24.20	105,945

(1) The amounts shown in these columns represent the aggregate grant date fair value of RSUs and option awards granted during the fiscal year. The amounts are valued in accordance with ASC Topic 718, Compensation – Stock Based Compensation. Assumptions used in the calculation of the grant date fair value are set forth in Note 9, Stock-Based Compensation, in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table shows certain information regarding outstanding equity awards, including option awards and RSUs, as of December 31, 2015 for each of our NEOs:

	Option Awards Number of Number of				Stock Awards		
	Securities	Securities					
	Unexercise Options that are	g Underlying edUnexercised Options that are not le Exercisable				Number of Shares or Units	Market Value of Share or
	as of	as of				of Stock	Units of
	December			Option		that have	
	31,	December		Exercise		not	have not
Named Executive Officer		31, 2015 <sup>(1)</sup>		Price (\$)	Option Expiration Date		Vested (\$)
Matthew Maloney		613,999	(a)	24.20	12/31/2025		
Matthew Maloney		225,000	(b)	13.70	1/28/2024		
Matthew Maloney		36,178	(2)(c)	8.39	3/12/2023		
Matthew Maloney	50,599	(3)		8.39	1/28/2023		
Matthew Maloney	_	32,090	(d)	6.18	11/16/2022		
Matthew Maloney	—	32,090	(e)	5.05	7/26/2022		
Matthew Maloney	123,499	42,783	(f)	1.99	4/23/2022		
Adam DeWitt						147,360	<sup>(a)</sup> 3,566,112
Adam DeWitt		29,400	(b)	37.21	1/7/2025		
Adam DeWitt	—	100,000	(b)	13.70	1/28/2024		
Adam DeWitt	—	18,414	(2)(c)	8.39	3/12/2023		
Adam DeWitt	_	16,333	(d)	6.18	11/16/2022		
Adam DeWitt	—	16,333	(g)	5.05	7/26/2022		
Adam DeWitt	—	16,333	(h)	1.99	4/23/2022		
Adam DeWitt	,	(4)		1.99	12/7/2021		
Adam DeWitt	102,470	(5)		1.99	12/7/2021		
Stanley Chia						58,330	<sup>(a)</sup> 1,411,586
Stanley Chia						12,687	<sup>(i)</sup> 503,674
Stanley Chia	_	28,027	(j)	39.70	5/12/2025		
Barbara Martin Coppola						34,998	<sup>(a)</sup> 846,952
Barbara Martin Coppola		69,996	(a)	24.20	12/31/2025		
Barbara Martin Coppola						25,374	<sup>(i)</sup> 1,007,348
Barbara Martin Coppola	_	56,054	(j)	39.70	5/12/2025		
Margo Drucker						38,000	<sup>(a)</sup> 919,600
Margo Drucker	_	8,799	(a)	24.20	12/31/2025		
Margo Drucker	_	50,600	(b)	13.70	1/28/2024		
Margo Drucker	3,259	(6) 18,229	(6)(k)	5.20	7/9/2022		

(1) The amounts shown above have been converted to reflect the post-Merger amounts and the post-Merger exercise prices of option awards that were assumed by the Company. In addition, the awards that were granted prior to the

Company's IPO reflect the impact of the Company's 2:1 reverse stock split that occurred immediately prior to the Company's IPO in April 2014.

- (2) Represents options granted in replacement of options awards granted to Messrs. Maloney and DeWitt in March 2013 (prior to the Merger) by Grubhub Holdings, pursuant to Grubhub Holdings' quarterly grant program. The remaining option awards to Messrs. Maloney and DeWitt that are listed above (other than those granted after the Merger Date and described in footnote (3) below) were granted in replacement for options granted in 2011 or 2012 (prior to the Merger) by Grubhub Holdings.
- (3) Represents options granted to Mr. Maloney in replacement of the IPO incentive award granted in January 2013 (prior to the Merger) by Grubhub Holdings. Mr. Maloney's IPO incentive award was determined to be appropriate by Grubhub Holdings' board of directors in light of Mr. Maloney's skills and importance to a successful public offering of Grubhub Holdings, as well as the value a successful offering would bring to Grubhub Holdings. Pursuant to the option award agreement, this option vested and became exercisable upon the consummation of the IPO.
- (4) Pursuant to the option award agreement, this option vested and became exercisable on February 8, 2014.
- (5) Pursuant to the option award agreement, this option vested and became exercisable on November 7, 2015.
- (6)Represents options granted in replacement of the option awards granted to Ms. Drucker in July 2012 (prior to the Merger) by Seamless.

Vesting Terms of Underlying Unexercised Options that were not Exercisable as of December 31, 2015

- (a) 1/4<sup>th</sup> of the shares underlying the option or restricted stock units will vest on January 1, 2017, thereafter 1/48 of the shares underlying the option will vest on the 1st calendar day of each month for 36 consecutive months beginning on February 1, 2017.
- (b) 1/4<sup>th</sup> of the shares underlying the option vested on February 1, 2016, thereafter 1/48 of the shares underlying the option vested or will vest on the 1st calendar day of each month for 36 consecutive months beginning on March 1, 2016.
- (c) 1/3<sup>rd</sup> of the shares underlying the option will vest on the 1st calendar day of each month for 3 consecutive months beginning on November 1, 2016.
- (d) 1/3<sup>rd</sup> of the shares underlying the option will vest on the 1st calendar day of each month for 3 consecutive months beginning on August 1, 2016.
- (e) 1/3<sup>rd</sup> of the shares underlying the option will vest on the 1st calendar day of each month for 3 consecutive months beginning on May 1, 2016.
- (f) Shares underlying the option vested or will vest on the 1st calendar day of each month as follows: approximately 1,239 shares beginning May 1, 2013 through April 1, 2014, approximately 3,028 shares beginning May 1, 2014 through January 1, 2015, approximately 10,697 shares beginning February 1, 2015 through March 1, 2016 and the remaining shares vest on April 1, 2016.
- (g) 1/3<sup>rd</sup> of the shares underlying the option will vest on the 1st calendar day of each month for 3 consecutive months beginning on May 1, 2016.
- (h) 1/3<sup>rd</sup> of the shares underlying the option vested on the 1st calendar day of each month for 3 consecutive months beginning on January 1, 2016.
- (i) 1/2 of the shares underlying the restricted stock unit vested on April 1, 2016, thereafter 1/24<sup>th</sup> of the shares underlying the restricted stock unit will vest on the 1st calendar day of each month for 12 consecutive months beginning on May 1, 2016.
- (j) 1/24th of the shares underlying the option will vest on the 1st calendar day of each month for 24 consecutive months beginning on May 1, 2017.
- (k) 1/4th of the shares underlying the option vested on July 1, 2013, thereafter 1/48 of the shares underlying the option vested or will vest on the 1st calendar day of each month for 36 consecutive months beginning on August 1, 2013.
  Option Exercises and Stock Vested

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

The following table presents, for each of the NEOs, the number of shares of our common stock acquired upon the exercise of stock options during 2015 and the aggregate value realized upon the exercise of stock options. No RSUs vested during 2015.

	Option Awards		
	Number		
	of		
	Shares	Value	
	AcquiredRealized		
	on	on	
	Exercise Exercise		
Named Executive Officer	(#)	(\$) <sup>(1)</sup>	
Matthew Maloney	36,278	1,239,208	
Adam DeWitt	66,500	2,206,436	
Margo Drucker	61,900	1,821,028	

The value realized on the exercise of options is the difference between the exercise price and the fair market value of our common shares on the date of exercise. Fair market value is determined by a real-time trading quote from the NYSE at the time of exercise.

#### **Employment Agreements**

Each of our named executive officers is party to an employment agreement or offer letter, pursuant to which such named executive officer is employed "at-will," subject to the termination provisions of their respective agreements. Each employment agreement provides for the payment of an annual base salary (subject to annual review at the Company's discretion), participation in the cash incentive compensation plan and other customary benefit programs. For an illustration of the potential payments and benefits upon termination of our named executive officers, see "Potential Payments upon Termination or Change of Control" below.

#### Matthew Maloney and Adam DeWitt

Mr. Maloney entered into an Employment Agreement with Grubhub Holdings in contemplation of the Merger, dated May 19, 2013 (the "Maloney Employment Agreement"), pursuant to which Mr. Maloney serves as the Company's Chief Executive Officer. The Maloney Employment Agreement provides for the payment of an annual base salary, which is subject to annual review by the Compensation Committee of the Board, and customary employee benefits. Further, the Maloney Employment Agreement provides that Mr. Maloney is eligible to participate in any cash incentive compensation plan to the same extent as our other senior executives and to receive equity awards as determined by the Compensation Committee in its sole discretion.

Mr. DeWitt entered into an employment agreement with Grubhub Holdings in contemplation of the Merger, dated May 19, 2013 (the "DeWitt Employment Agreement"), pursuant to which Mr. DeWitt serves as the Company's Chief Financial Officer. The DeWitt Employment Agreement provides for the payment of an annual base salary and customary employee benefits. Further, the DeWitt Employment Agreement provides that Mr. DeWitt is eligible to participate in any cash incentive compensation plan to the same extent as our other senior executives.

Mr. DeWitt was granted two options on December 7, 2011. One was subject to time vesting (the "Initial Option") and the other was scheduled to vest upon the consummation of an initial public offering (the "IPO Option"). Both of these options were amended

by the terms of the DeWitt Employment Agreement, which provided that in exchange for his waiver of the acceleration provisions of the Initial Option, which otherwise entitled him to acceleration upon the Merger, he would be entitled to vest in the IPO Option on the earlier of February 8, 2014 or the consummation of an initial public offering (which such IPO Option vested on February 8, 2014); and the Initial Option would continue to vest for 48 months, having begun vesting on December 7, 2011. In connection with the Merger, we assumed Mr. Maloney's and Mr. DeWitt's option awards that were outstanding prior to the Merger, including the Initial Option and the IPO Option, and replaced them with options under the 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan.

In addition to the above benefits, if Mr. Maloney's or Mr. DeWitt's employment is terminated by the Company without "cause" or by him for "good reason" (as such terms are defined in the respective employment agreement), he will be entitled to receive:

•twelve months of his then-current base salary, payable in equal installments over twelve months;

•reimbursement of the portion of "COBRA" that the Company would have paid if he were still employed for up to twelve months for him and any of his eligible dependents; and

• a period of three (3) months to exercise vested options held by him as of the date of termination; provided that, in no event will he be entitled to exercise such options following the expiration of the original term of the option. If either Mr. Maloney or Mr. DeWitt is terminated by the Company without "cause" or by him for "good reason" within the period beginning 45 days prior to and ending twelve months after the occurrence of a Change in Control (as defined in their employment agreements), then such NEO will be entitled to receive the above-referenced severance benefits. In addition, in such an event, all of their then-outstanding stock options or stock-based awards (including any outstanding options granted in replacement of any options that were outstanding prior to the Merger) will immediately vest and become exercisable. Furthermore, Messrs. Maloney and DeWitt will be entitled to receive a pro rata target incentive compensation opportunity, if applicable, for the year of termination.

Any severance payments are conditioned upon the NEOs entering into a release of claims in favor of the Company as well as compliance with non-competition and non-solicitation restrictions. More specifically, Messrs. Maloney and DeWitt's non-competition and non-solicitation obligations are binding both during their employment as well as for a period of one year thereafter for Mr. DeWitt and two years thereafter for Mr. Maloney, except that the post-termination period will be shortened to one year in respect of non-competition restrictions in the event of termination without "cause" or resignation for "good reason". Further, Mr. Maloney's and Mr. DeWitt's employment agreements contain a modified Section 280G cut-back provision pursuant to which any payments constituting "parachute payments" under Section 280G of the Code shall be reduced to the extent such reduction results in a greater payment to the respective executive than if no such reduction had been made.

#### Stanley Chia and Barbara Martin Coppola

Mr. Chia and Ms. Coppola each entered into an offer letter (collectively, the "Offer Letters") with Grubhub on February 22, 2015 and February 27, 2015, respectively. Pursuant to the Offer Letters, each of Ms. Coppola and Mr. Chia is entitled to participate in the Management Incentive Bonus program for 2015 with an annual target bonus opportunity of 50% of base salary (prorated for 2015), subject to the attainment of applicable performance goals. Mr. Chia is entitled to receive a minimum bonus of \$50,000 in each of 2015 and 2016. Ms. Coppola and Mr. Chia were each provided relocation assistance of up to \$100,000 for reasonable costs ("Relocation Benefit Advance") to move closer to Grubhub's headquarters in Chicago. Pursuant to the Offer Letters, Mr. Chia and Ms. Coppola received new hire equity grants under the 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan, which are described in further detail under "New Hire Awards – Stanley Chia and Barbara Martin Coppola" above. In addition, Ms. Coppola was provided a limited cash severance arrangement when she joined Grubhub. Under this arrangement, if Ms. Coppola's employment had been terminated

without "cause" during her first year of employment, she would have been entitled to receive 52 weeks of her annual base salary in effect immediately prior to the termination.

## Margo Drucker

On May 17, 2012, Ms. Drucker entered into an offer letter with Seamless and an Agreement Relating to Employment and Post-Employment Competition (collectively, the "Drucker Employment Agreement"), pursuant to which she served as Vice President and General Counsel of Seamless and serves as our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. The Drucker Employment Agreement provides for the payment of base salary and customary employee benefits. In addition, Ms. Drucker was eligible to participate in the Seamless equity incentive compensation plan and bonus plan.

Pursuant to the Drucker Employment Agreement, if Ms. Drucker is terminated by the Company for any reason other than "cause" (as defined in the Drucker Employment Agreement), she is entitled to receive: (1) severance payments equal to her then-current weekly base salary for 26 weeks, and (2) continued coverage under the Company's group health plan for 26 weeks at the same cost to Ms. Drucker as when she was actively employed; provided that if Ms. Drucker becomes employed by a new employer during such period, continued coverage will become secondary to any coverage afforded by the new employer.

In connection with Ms. Drucker's commencement of employment, the board of directors of Seamless granted Ms. Drucker options to purchase Seamless common stock and, in connection with the Merger, those options were assumed by us and replaced with 125,000 options under the 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the "Drucker Pre-Merger Options"). In the event of a Change of Control (as defined in the 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan) of the Company, 50% of the then-unvested Drucker Pre-Merger Options will immediately vest and become exercisable concurrently with the occurrence of the Change in Control. Additionally, if Ms. Drucker's employment is terminated by the Company without "cause" or by her as the result of a "Material Diminution," within six months following a Change of Control, then any unvested Drucker Pre-Merger Options will immediately vest and become exercisable. "Material Diminution" is defined as (i) a material reduction in Ms. Drucker's assigned duties that goes uncured within 30 days of Ms. Drucker's written notice to the Company, (ii) a relocation of the Company's headquarters to a location greater than 50 miles from New York City, or (iii) a material reduction in Ms. Drucker's base salary or target annual bonus.

In addition, pursuant to the Stock Option Agreement covering the stock options granted to Ms. Drucker on January 28, 2014 (the "2014 Options"), if Ms. Drucker is terminated by the Company without "cause" or by her for "good reason" within the period beginning 45 days prior to and ending twelve months after the occurrence of a Change in Control (as defined in the 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan), then any then-unvested 2014 Options will immediately vest and become exercisable.

# Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control

The following table describes the potential payments and benefits to our named executive officers (1) in connection with a Change of Control and (2) upon termination of our named executive officers' employment (i) for "cause," death or disability, (ii) without "cause" or resignation for "good reason," or (iii) for termination without "cause" or resignation for "good reason," or (iii) for termination without "cause" or resignation for "good reason," or (iii) for termination without "cause" or resignation for "good reason," or (iii) for termination without "cause" or resignation for "good reason" in connection with a Change of Control, in each case, as if the event occurred on December 31, 2015. There can be no assurance that a triggering event would produce the same or similar results as those estimated if such event were to occur on any other date, when our stock price was different, or if any other assumption used to estimate potential payments and benefits differed from those used herein. Due to the number of factors that affect the nature and amount of any potential payments or benefits, actual payments and benefits may differ from those presented in the table below. For additional information, see "Employment Agreements" and "Annual Equity Awards" above for a more detailed description of potential payments and benefits to our named executive officers upon termination and/or a change of control.

Named Executive		Severance	Health & Welfare Benefits		Option Awards	Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensatio	nTotal
Officer	Termination Scenario	(\$) <sup>(1)</sup>	(\$)	(\$) <sup>(2)</sup>	(\$) <sup>(3)</sup>	(\$)	(\$)
Matthew	Without Cause/Resignation for	(4)	(4)	(*)	(+)	(+)	(4)
Maloney	Good Reason	600,000	18,095	—	—	—	618,095
	Change of Control Followed by						
	Termination Without Cause or						
	Resignation for Good Reason <sup>(4)</sup>	600,000	18,095		5,077,470	300,000	5,995,565
Adam	Without Cause/Resignation for						
DeWitt	Good Reason	375,000	18,095			—	393,095

	Change of Control Followed by Termination Without Cause or Resignation for Good Reason <sup>(4)</sup>	375,000	18,095	3 566 112	2,310,979	187 500	6,457,686
Stanley Chi	a Change of Control Followed by Termination Without Cause or	575,000	10,075			107,500	
Barbara Martin Coppola	Resignation for Good Reason <sup>(4)</sup> Without Cause Change of Control Followed by Termination Without Cause or Resignation for Good Reason <sup>(4)</sup>	333,000	_	1,411,586 —	_	_	1,411,586 333,000
				846,952			846,952
Margo Drucker	Without Cause Change of Control <sup>(5)</sup> Change of Control Followed by Termination Without Cause or Resignation for Good Reason/Material Diminution <sup>(4)</sup>	184,000 —	9,048 —	  919,600	— 173,176 877,651		193,048 173,176 1,797,251
38							

- (3) The value of accelerated vesting of unvested stock options is based on the difference between the closing stock price on December 31, 2015, which was \$24.20, and the exercise price per option multiplied by the number of unvested options.
- (4) Represents change in control severance benefits based on a double-trigger arrangement, which assumes a change in control of the Company followed by the termination by the Company of an NEO without "cause" or by the NEO for "good reason" (or, with respect the Drucker Pre-Merger Options, a "Material Diminution"), as of December 31, 2015. See "Employment Agreements" above for a description of Messrs. Maloney and DeWitt's and Ms. Drucker's change of control severance benefits. See "Annual Equity Awards" above for a description of change in control severance benefits to each of the NEOs in connection with the December Grants.
- (5)Represents change in control severance benefits to Ms. Drucker upon consummation of a Change of Control (as defined in the 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan) of the Company. See "Employment Agreements Margo Drucker" above for additional information.

Equity Based Compensation Plan Information

Immediately prior to and in connection with the consummation of the Merger, the Board and the Company's stockholders approved the 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan. On May 20, 2015, our stockholders approved the Grubhub Inc. 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan. Following the approval of the 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan, no further awards have been or will be granted under the 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan. The following table sets forth information, as of December 31, 2015, concerning the 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan and the 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan:

	Number of Securities to be Issued Upon Exercise of Outstanding Options, Warrants and Rights	Weighted-Average Exercise Price of Outstanding Options, Warrants and Rights <sup>(3)</sup>	Number of Securities Remaining Available for Future Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans (Excluding Securities Reflected in the First Column) <sup>(4)</sup>
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders:	und Hights	und rughts	Columny
2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan	1,954,733 (1)	\$ 25.08	8,637,093
2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan	4,079,791 (2)	\$ 18.09	
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders:			
Total	6,034,524	\$ 19.66	8,637,093
(1)Includes 820,074 shares issuable upon the vesting of RSUs.			

(2) Includes 68,409 and 67,744 shares issuable upon the vesting of RSUs and restricted stock awards, respectively.

<sup>(1)</sup>Each NEO's base salary in effect on December 31, 2015 was used for purposes of valuing the severance payments.

<sup>(2)</sup> The value of accelerated vesting of unvested RSUs is based upon the closing stock price on December 31, 2015, which was \$24.20, multiplied by the number of unvested RSUs.

- (3) The weighted-average exercise price excludes RSUs, which have no exercise price.
- (4) All of these shares are available for issuance under the 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan, which allows grants in the form of cash awards, stock options, restricted stock awards, RSUs, performance awards, other stock-based awards or combinations thereof. The maximum number of shares that may be issued under the 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan as of December 31, 2015 was 11,123,919 shares (including 723,919 shares issued under the 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan that expired or were cancelled without having been exercised), of which 8,637,093 remained available for issuance as of December 31, 2015.

# CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

### Registration Rights Agreement

On August 8, 2013, we entered into a registration rights agreement (the "Registration Rights Agreement") with certain holders of our stock listed therein (collectively, and as amended, "Holders"). Pursuant to the terms of the Registration Rights Agreement, Holders are entitled to demand registration and piggyback registration rights.

Demand Registrations. Under the Registration Rights Agreement, following our IPO, Holders are able to require us, by delivering written notice, to file a registration statement covering at least \$25,000,000 of the common stock issued to the Holders and any of those securities issued to the Holders by way of share split, share dividend, recapitalization, exchange, merger, consolidation or similar event or otherwise, and held by all of the Holders immediately prior to the filing of the registration statement (any such written notice, a "Demand Notice" and any such registration, a "Demand Registration"). We are required to use our reasonable best efforts to effect such registration in accordance with the terms of the Demand Notice, subject to certain rights we will have to delay or postpone such registration. Certain Holders are limited by the number of Demand Registrations that they may require us to effect. At any time before the effective date of registration, the requisite Holders who provided the Demand Notice with respect to such Demand Registration, on behalf of all of the selling Holders, may revoke such request without liability to such selling Holders by providing written notice to the Company.

Piggyback Registrations. Under the Registration Rights Agreement, if at any time we propose to register any of our equity securities under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (other than a registration statement on Form S-4, Form S-8 or any successor forms thereto, or pursuant to an employee benefit or dividend reinvestment plan), we will be required to notify the Holders 20 days before the anticipated filing date of their right to participate in such registration. We will use reasonable best efforts to cause all eligible securities requested to be included in the registration statement to be so included. We have the right to reduce the amount of securities to be offered by the Holders in such registration statement if the underwriters deem that the proposed amount of securities to be sold will adversely affect the success of the sale of such securities. We also have the right to withdraw or postpone the filing of a registration statement in which the Holders have elected to exercise piggyback registration rights. Certain Holders exercised their piggyback rights pursuant to the Registration Rights Agreement in connection with our follow-on offering.

### Indemnification of Officers and Directors

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation contains provisions that limit the liability of our directors for monetary damages to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law. Consequently, our directors will not be personally liable to us or our stockholders for monetary damages for any breach of fiduciary duties as directors, except liability for the following:

- ·any breach of their duty of loyalty to our Company or our stockholders;
- any act or omission not in good faith or that involves intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;
- •unlawful payments of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions as provided in Section 174 of the
- Delaware General Corporation Law ("DGCL"); or
- any transaction from which they derived an improper personal benefit.

Any amendment to, or repeal of these provisions will not eliminate or reduce the effect of these provisions in respect of any act, omission or claim that occurred or arose prior to that amendment or repeal. If the DGCL is amended to provide for further limitations on the personal liability of directors of corporations, then the personal liability of our directors will be further limited to the greatest extent permitted by the DGCL.

Our amended and restated bylaws provide that we will indemnify, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any person who is or was a party or is threatened to be made a party to any action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that he or she is or was one of our directors or officers or is or was serving at our request as a director or officer of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise. Our amended and restated bylaws also provide that we must advance expenses incurred by or on behalf of a director or officer in advance of the final disposition of any action or proceeding, subject to very limited exceptions.

Further, we have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers that may be broader than the specific indemnification provisions contained in the DGCL. These indemnification agreements require us, among other things, to indemnify our directors and executive officers against liabilities that may arise by reason of their status or service and to advance all expenses incurred by them in investigating or defending any such action, suit, or proceeding.

We believe that these bylaw provisions and indemnification agreements are necessary to attract and retain qualified persons as officers and members of the Board. We also maintain directors' and officers' liability insurance.

# Policies and Procedures for Related Party Transactions

### Related Party Transaction Policy

The Board has adopted a written Related Party Transaction Policy (the "Policy") governing the review, approval and ratification of transactions that involve related persons and potential conflicts of interest. Related persons include the Company's officers, directors and director nominees, holders of more than five percent (5%) of a class of the Company's voting securities, and immediate family members of the foregoing persons. A "related party transaction" means a transaction or series of transactions in which the Company was, is or will be a participant and the amount involved will or may be expected to exceed \$120,000, and in which a related party has a direct or indirect material interest. Examples include sales, purchases or other transfers of real or personal property, use of property and equipment by lease or otherwise, services received or furnished, the borrowing and lending of funds, as well as guarantees of loans or other undertakings; and the employment by the Company of an immediate family member of a related party, or a material change in the terms or conditions of the employment of such an individual.

The Audit Committee has the authority to (i) determine categories of related party transactions that are immaterial and are not required to be individually reported to, reviewed by, and/or approved by the Audit Committee and (ii) approve in advance categories of related party transactions that need not be individually reported to, reviewed by, and/or approved by the Audit Committee, but instead may be reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee collectively on a periodic basis.

According to the Policy, the following transactions do not constitute related party transactions due to their nature, size and/or degree of significance to the Company and therefore do not require approval:

- •reimbursement of business expenses incurred by directors or officers in the performance of their duties and approved for reimbursement by the Company;
- ·compensation for non-employee directors approved by the Board;
- compensation arrangements approved by the Compensation Committee, and employee benefits regularly provided under plans and programs general available to employees;
- a transaction where the rates or charges involved are determined by competitive bids, or which involves the rendering of services as a common or contract carrier, or public utility, at rates or charges fixed in conformity with law or regulation or by governmental authority;
- a transaction involving services as a bank depositary of funds, transfer agent, registrar, trustee under a trust indenture, or similar services; and
- •transactions entered into the ordinary course of business between the Company and a corporate client for Company corporate services that involve a related party either due to his or her (i) employment with the corporate client, (ii) control over such corporate client or (iii) material ownership or financial interest in such corporate client; provided that such transaction(s) are entered into at arms' length.
- Audit Committee Review and Approval

The Audit Committee has the primary responsibility for reviewing and approving "related party transactions." The Audit Committee may delegate its authority to review and approve specified related party transactions or categories of related party transactions (other than a transaction involving a member of the Audit Committee) to one or more members of the Audit Committee where the Audit Committee determines that such action is warranted. The Audit Committee may also delegate its authority to review and approve specified related party transactions or categories of related party transactions to the Company's CEO and CFO, acting collectively (other than transactions involving any

such delegated officer or a director). Any determinations made by such Audit Committee member or members or by officers pursuant to such delegated authority shall be promptly reported to the full Audit Committee, which may ratify or reverse such determination, as it deems appropriate.

In connection with approving or ratifying a related party transaction, the Audit Committee shall consider all relevant facts and circumstances relating to whether the transaction is in the best interests of the Company, including consideration of the following factors:

- the position within or relationship of the related party to the Company;
- •the materiality of the transaction to the related party and the Company, including the dollar value of the transaction, without regard to profit or loss;
- •the business purpose for and reasonableness of the transaction (including the anticipated profit or loss from the transaction), taken in the context of the alternatives available to the Company for attaining the purposes of the transaction;
- $\cdot$  whether the transaction is comparable to a transaction that could be available with an unrelated party, or is on terms that the Company offers generally to persons who are not related parties;
- •whether the transaction is in the ordinary course of the Company's business and was proposed and considered in the ordinary course of business;
- •the effect of the transaction on the Company's business and operations, including on the Company's internal control over financial reporting and system of disclosure controls or procedures; and
- $\cdot$  any additional conditions or controls (including reporting and review requirements) that should be applied to such transaction.

The Audit Committee has the obligation to notify the Board in writing on a quarterly basis of any and all related party transactions approved by the Audit Committee.

# Other Transactions

Brian McAndrews, the Chairman of our Board, served as Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of Pandora from September 2013 until March 2016. The Company and its subsidiaries have entered into, and will continue to enter into, transactions with Pandora for the provision of advertising, which in fiscal 2015 involved payments to Pandora of approximately \$903,000. The Audit Committee reviews transactions with Pandora on a quarterly basis and has concluded, after considering relevant facts and circumstances, that they are not sufficiently material to the related party or to the Company to constitute related party transactions.

Benjamin Spero is a member of our Board. His mother, Joan Spero, is a member of the board of directors of Citigroup Global Markets Inc. ("Citigroup"). Citigroup advised Grubhub Holdings in regard to the Merger, for which services Citigroup received an advisory fee. In addition, Citigroup served as an underwriter in connection with Grubhub's IPO and follow-on offering, for which services it received customary underwriting discounts and commissions. Finally, Citigroup acts as the broker dealer in connection with the Company's stock repurchase program. While these transactions involved payments that exceeded \$120,000, the Audit Committee concluded, after considering relevant facts and circumstances, that they are not sufficiently material to the related party or the Company to constitute related party transactions.

Other than as described above under this section entitled "Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions," since January 1, 2015, we have not entered into any transactions, nor are there any currently proposed transactions between us and a related party where the amount involved exceeds, or would exceed, \$120,000, and in which any related person had or will have a direct or indirect material interest. We believe the terms of the transactions described above were comparable to terms we could have obtained in arms'-length dealings with unrelated third parties.

### SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS, DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table presents information as to the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of the Record Date, March 18, 2016, for: (i) each person who is known by us to beneficially own more than 5% of our outstanding common stock; (ii) each of the executive officers named in our Summary Compensation Table; (iii) each of our current directors and director nominees; and (iv) all current executive officers, directors and director nominees, as a group. Unless otherwise indicated below, the address of each of the individuals and entities listed below is c/o Grubhub Inc., 111 W. Washington Street, Suite 2100, Chicago, Illinois 60602.

Percentage ownership of our common stock is based on 84,624,805 shares of our common stock issued and outstanding as of March 18, 2016. In computing the number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by a person and the percentage ownership of that person, we deemed outstanding shares of common stock subject to stock options and RSUs held by that person that are currently exercisable or will be exercisable/vested within 60 days of March 18, 2016 (May 17, 2016). However, we did not deem these shares to be outstanding for the purposes of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.

Name of Beneficial Owner	Number of Shares Beneficially Owned	Percentage of Class Beneficially Owned (%)			
5% Stockholders:					
Caledonia (Private) Investments Pty Limited <sup>(1)</sup>	9,256,656	10.94 %			
T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. <sup>(2)</sup>	8,817,863	10.42 %			
Baillie Gifford & Co. <sup>(3)</sup>	8,262,641	9.76 %			
Luxor Capital Group, LP <sup>(4)</sup>	5,998,730	7.09 %			
PAR Investment Partners, L.P. <sup>(5)</sup>	5,455,000	6.45 %			
Pelham Capital Ltd. <sup>(6)</sup>	5,404,252	6.39 %			
The Vanguard Group <sup>(7)</sup>	4,384,228	5.18 %			
Morgan Stanley <sup>(8)</sup>	4,324,790	5.11 %			
Named Executive Officers and					
Directors: Matthew Maloney <sup>(9)</sup>	1,879,342	2.21 %			
Adam DeWitt <sup>(10)</sup>	193,806	*			
Stanley Chia <sup>(11)</sup>	6,872	*			
Barbara Martin Coppola <sup>(12)</sup>	13,744	*			
Margo Drucker <sup>(13)</sup>	26,394	*			
David Fisher <sup>(14)</sup>	59,898	*			
Lloyd Frink <sup>(15)</sup>	100,075	*			
Katrina Lake	0	*			

Girish Lakshman <sup>(16)</sup>		3,793	*		
Brian McAndrews <sup>(17)</sup>		214,455	*		
Keith Richman	0		*		
Justin Sadrian	0		*		
Benjamin Spero <sup>(18)</sup>		2,468,007		2.92	%
All current executive					
officers, directors and					
director nominees, as		4,966,386		5.82	%
a group (13					
persons) <sup>(19)</sup>					

\*Represents less than 1% of the outstanding common stock

- (1) The information is based solely on the Schedule 13G/A filed by Caledonia (Private) Investments Pty Limited ("Caledonia") with the SEC on February 12, 2016. The amount beneficially owned, as of December 31, 2015, includes 9,256,656 shares over which there is sole voting and sole dispositive power. The reporting person has informed the Company that Morgan Stanley & Co. International PLC and UBS AG, Australia Branch, each a prime broker, has a pledge over 2,835,396 shares beneficially owned by Caledonia. The principal business address of Caledonia is Level 7, Gold Fields House, 1 Alfred Street, Sydney NSW 2000, Australia.
- (2) The information is based solely on the Schedule 13G/A filed jointly by T. Rowe Price, Inc. ("T. Rowe Price Associates") and T. Rowe Price New Horizons Fund, Inc. ("T. Rowe Price New Horizons") with the SEC on February 11, 2016. The shares beneficially owned, as of December 31, 2015, include 1,726,044 shares and 8,817,863 shares over which T. Rowe Price Associates has sole voting and dispositive power, respectively. The shares beneficially owned by T. Rowe Price Associates are owned by various individual and institutional investors, including T. Rowe Price New Horizons, which has sole voting power over 4,260,094 shares or approximately five percent. T. Rowe Price Associates serves as an investment adviser to T. Rowe Price New Horizons and has power to direct investments and/or sole power to vote such shares. For the purposes of the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, T. Rowe Price Associates is deemed the beneficial owner of such securities; however, T. Rowe Price Associates and T. Rowe Price New Horizons Fund is 100 E. Pratt Street, Baltimore, MD 21202.

- (3) This information is based solely on a Schedule 13G filed by Baillie Gifford & Co. with the SEC on February 5, 2016. The amount beneficially owned, as of December 31, 2015, includes 6,921,610 shares and 8,262,641 shares over which the reporting person has sole voting and sole dispositive power, respectively. The principal business address of Baillie Gifford & Co. is Calton Square, 1 Greenside Row, Edinburgh EH1 3AN, Scotland, United Kingdom.
- (4) The information is based solely on the Schedule 13D filed jointly with the SEC on January 29, 2016 by Luxor Capital Partners, LP (the "Onshore Fund"), Luxor Wavefront, LP (the "Wavefront Fund"), Luxor Capital Partners Offshore Master Fund, LP (the "Offshore Master Fund"), Luxor Capital Partners Offshore, Ltd. (the "Offshore Feeder Fund" and, collectively with the Onshore Fund, the Wavefront Fund and the Offshore Master Fund, the "Luxor Funds"), LCG Holdings, LLC ("LCG Holdings"), Luxor Capital Group, LP ("Luxor Capital Group"), Luxor Management, LLC ("Luxor Management") and Christian Leone. The Onshore Fund may be deemed to have beneficially owned 2,740,938 shares, the Offshore Master Fund may be deemed to have beneficially owned 2,579,373 shares and the Wavefront Fund may be deemed to have beneficially owned 678,419 shares. The Offshore Feeder Fund, as the owner of a controlling interest in the Offshore Master Fund, may be deemed to have beneficially owned the 2,579,373 shares beneficially owned by the Offshore Master Fund. LCG Holdings, as the general partner of the Onshore Fund, the Wavefront Fund and the Offshore Master Fund, may be deemed to have beneficially owned the 5,998,730 shares beneficially owned in the aggregate by the Onshore Fund, the Wavefront Fund and the Offshore Master Fund. Luxor Capital Group, as the investment manager of the Luxor Funds, may be deemed to have beneficially owned the 5,998,730 Shares owned in the aggregate by the Luxor Funds. Luxor Management, as the general partner of Luxor Capital Group, may be deemed to have beneficially owned the 5,998,730 shares beneficially owned by Luxor Capital Group. Mr. Leone, as the managing member of Luxor Management, may be deemed to have beneficially owned the 5,998,730 Shares owned by Luxor Management. Each of the Onshore Fund, LCG Holdings, Luxor Capital Group, Luxor Management and Mr. Leone has shared power to vote or direct the vote of, and to dispose or direct the disposition of, the shares beneficially owned by the Onshore Fund. Each of the Wavefront Fund, LCG Holdings, Luxor Capital Group, Luxor Management and Mr. Leone has shared power to vote or direct the vote of, and to dispose or direct the disposition of, the shares beneficially owned by the Wavefront Fund. Each of the Offshore Master Fund, the Offshore Feeder Fund, LCG Holdings, Luxor Capital Group, Luxor Management and Mr. Leone has shared power to vote or direct the vote of, and to dispose or direct the disposition of, the shares beneficially owned by the Offshore Master Fund. The principal business address of each of the Onshore Fund, the Wavefront Fund, Luxor Capital Group, Luxor Management, LCG Holdings and Mr. Leone is 1114 Avenue of the Americas, 29th Floor, New York, New York 10036. The principal business address of each of the Offshore Master Fund, the Offshore Feeder Fund, the Spectrum Master Fund and the Spectrum Feeder Fund is c/o M&C Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309 GT, Ugland House, South Church Street, Georgetown, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.
- (5) The information is based solely on the Schedule 13G filed jointly by PAR Investment Partners, L.P. ("PAR Investment"), PAR Group, L.P. ("PAR Group") and PAR Capital Management, Inc. ("PAR Capital") with the SEC on February 1, 2016. The amount beneficially owned, as of January 22, 2016, includes 5,455,000 shares over which each of PAR Investment, PAR Group and PAR Capital has sole voting power and sole dispositive power. The sole general partner of PAR Investment is PAR Group. The sole general partner of PAR Capital may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of all shares held directly by PAR Investment Partners, L.P. The principal business address of PAR Investment, PAR Group and PAR Capital is One International Place, Suite 2041, Boston, MA 02110.
- (6) The information is based solely on the Schedule 13D/A filed jointly by Pelham Capital Ltd. and Ross Turner with the SEC on January 27, 2016. The amount beneficially owned, as of January 25, 2016, includes 5,404,252 shares over which each of Pelham Capital Ltd. and Ross Turner has sole voting and sole investment power. Ross Turner is the Chief Investment Officer of Pelham Capital Ltd. (the "Investment Manager"). The Investment Manager is the

investment manager of Pelham Long/Short Master Fund Ltd. ("Pelham Master"), the entity that directly holds the 5,404,252 shares of common stock (the "Master Fund Shares"). Pursuant to an amended and restated investment management agreement, the Investment Manager has been delegated full voting and investment power over the Master Fund Shares, by both Pelham Master and Pelham Capital Management Limited, the manager of Pelham Master. The principal business address of the reporting persons is Pelham Capital Ltd., The Economist Building, 9th Floor, 25 St. James's Street, London SW1A 1HA, United Kingdom.

- (7) This information is based solely on the Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 11, 2016 by The Vanguard Group, Inc. ("Vanguard"). The amount beneficially owned, as of December 31, 2015, includes 165,739 shares, 3,400 shares, 4,218,689 shares and 165,539 shares over which Vanguard has sole voting power, shared voting power, sole dispositive power and shared dispositive power, respectively. Vanguard Fiduciary Trust Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Vanguard, is the beneficial owner of 162,139 shares as a result of its serving as investment manager of collective trust accounts. Vanguard Investments Australia, Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Vanguard, is the beneficial owner of 7,000 shares as a result of its serving as investment manager of Australian investment offerings. The principal business address of The Vanguard Group is 100 Vanguard Blvd., Malvern, PA 19355.
- (8) The information is based solely on the Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on January 22, 2016 by Morgan Stanley. The amount beneficially owned, as of January 13, 2016, includes 4,213,142 shares, 107,334 shares and 4,324,790 shares over which Morgan Stanley has sole voting power, shared voting power and shared dispositive power, respectively. The principal business address of Morgan Stanley is 1585 Broadway, New York, NY 10036.
- (9) Consists of (i) 329,646 shares held by the Holly R. Maloney Revocable Trust; (ii) 392,515 shares held by the Matthew M. Maloney Revocable Trust; (iii) 859,290 shares held by the Maloney 2015 Exempt Trust; and (iv) 297,891 shares of common stock that are issuable upon exercise of stock options, which are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 18, 2016. Holly R. Maloney, as trustee of the Holly R. Maloney Revocable Trust and the Maloney 2015 Exempt Trust, has sole voting and dispositive power over the shares held by the Holly R. Maloney Revocable Trust and the Maloney 2015 Exempt Trust. Matthew M. Maloney, as trustee of the Matthew M. Maloney Revocable Trust, has sole voting and dispositive power over the shares held by the Matthew M. Maloney Revocable Trust, has sole voting and dispositive power over the shares held by the Matthew M. Maloney Revocable Trust, has sole voting and dispositive power over the shares held by the Matthew M. Maloney Revocable Trust, has sole voting and dispositive power over the shares held by the Matthew M. Maloney Revocable Trust, has sole voting and dispositive power over the shares held by the Matthew M. Maloney Revocable Trust, has sole voting and dispositive power over the shares held by the Matthew M. Maloney Revocable Trust, has sole voting and dispositive power over the shares held by the Matthew M. Maloney Revocable Trust, has one voting and dispositive power over the shares held by the Matthew M. Maloney Revocable Trust. Also includes 250,354 shares that Mr. Maloney pledged to Morgan Stanley on November 30, 2015.

- (10)Consists of (i) 500 shares of common stock and (ii) 193,306 shares of common stock that are issuable upon exercise of stock options, which are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 18, 2016.
- (11)Consists of 6,872 shares of common stock subject to RSUs that vest within 60 days of March 18, 2016.
- (12)Consists of 13,744 shares of common stock subject to RSUs that vest within 60 days of March 18, 2016.
- (13)Consists of (i) 500 shares of common stock and (ii) 25,894 shares of common stock that are issuable upon exercise of stock options, which are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 18, 2016.
- (14)Consists of 59,898 shares of common stock that are issuable upon exercise of stock options, which are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 18, 2016.
- (15)Consists of (i) 77,000 shares of common stock and (ii) 23,075 shares of common stock that are issuable upon exercise of stock options, which are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 18, 2016.
- (16)Consists of 3,793 shares of common stock that are issuable upon exercise of stock options, which are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 18, 2016.
- (17) Consists of (i) 115,574 shares of common stock that are issuable upon exercise of stock options, which are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 18, 2016, and (ii) 49,440 shares and 49,441 shares held by each of Spiral I Irrevocable Trust and Spiral V Irrevocable Trust (the "Spiral Trusts"), respectively, which were transferred by Mr. McAndrews in February 2014. Christopher McAndrews, as trustee of the Spiral Trusts, has sole voting and dispositive power over the shares held by the Spiral Trusts. The mailing address of the Spiral Trusts is c/o McCutchen Group LLC, 925 Fourth Avenue, Suite 2288, Seattle, WA 98104.
- (18) Consists of (i) 2,461,097 shares held directly by SEI VI Chow AIV, L.P. ("SEI VI"), the general partner of which is Spectrum Equity Associates VI, L.P., the general partner of which is SEA VI Management, LLC ("SEA VI Management") over which Brion B. Applegate, William P. Collatos, Victor E. Parker, Christopher T. Mitchell and Benjamin C. Spero exercise voting and dispositive power; (ii) 5,949 shares held directly by Spectrum VI Investment Managers' Fund, L.P. ("IMF VI"); and (iii) 961 shares held directly by Spectrum VI Co-Investment Fund, L.P. ("CIF VI" and together with SEI VI and IMF VI, the "Spectrum Funds"). SEA VI Management is the general partner of IMF VI and CIF VI. Mr. Spero exercises voting and dispositive power over the Spectrum Funds and may be deemed to have shared voting and investment power over the shares held by the Spectrum Funds. Mr. Spero disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares except to the extent of his pecuniary interest in the shares. Mr. Spero does not directly own any shares of common stock of the Company. The principal business address of each of the Spectrum Funds is 140 New Montgomery Street, 20th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94105.
- (19)Includes (i) 64,014 shares of common stock that are issuable upon exercise of stock options, which are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 18, 2016, and (ii) 20,616 shares of common stock subject to RSUs that vest within 60 days of March 18, 2016.

# SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our executive officers, directors and 10% stockholders to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC. Executive officers, directors and 10% stockholders are also required by the SEC to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) reports they file. To our knowledge, based solely upon a review of copies of such reports received and written representations from our executive officers, directors and 10% stockholders, our executive officers, directors and 10% stockholders filed the required reports in a timely manner under Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 with the exception of one report on Form 4 reporting five transactions effected pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 by Matthew Maloney on October 26, 2015, which was inadvertently filed one day late.

### ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

### Stockholder Proposals

Stockholders who intend to have a proposal, including nominations for election to the Board, considered for inclusion in our proxy materials for our 2017 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "2017 Annual Meeting") pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act must submit the proposal in writing to our Secretary at Grubhub Inc., 111 W. Washington Street, Suite 2100, Chicago, Illinois 60602 by no later than December 2, 2016 and otherwise comply with the requirements of the SEC for stockholder proposals.

Stockholders who intend to bring a proposal before the 2017 Annual Meeting, or to nominate persons for election as directors, in accordance with the advance notice provisions of our amended and restated bylaws, must give timely written notice to the Company's Secretary of such proposal or nomination. To be timely, the notice must be delivered to the above address not less than 90 days nor more than 120 days prior to the one-year anniversary of the preceding year's annual meeting. Accordingly, to be timely, a notice must be received not later than February 10, 2017 nor earlier than January 11, 2017 (assuming the meeting is held not more than 30 days before or more than 60 days after May 11, 2017). If the 2017 Annual Meeting is held more than 30 days before or more than 60 days after May 11, 2017, then, for notice to be timely, it must be delivered to the address above not later than the close of business on the later of (i) the 90<sup>th</sup> day prior to such annual meeting, or (ii) the tenth day following the day on which public announcement of the date of such annual meeting is first made. Each notice must describe the stockholder proposal in reasonable detail and otherwise comply with the requirements set forth in our amended and restated bylaws.

### Householding of Proxy Materials

The SEC has adopted rules that permit companies and intermediaries (e.g., brokers) to satisfy the delivery requirements for Notices of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or other Annual Meeting materials with respect to two or more stockholders sharing the same address by delivering a single Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or other Annual Meeting materials addressed to such stockholders. This delivery method is referred to as "householding" and can result in extra convenience for stockholders and cost savings for companies. This year, we will be "householding" our proxy materials. A single Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials will be delivered to multiple stockholders sharing an address unless contrary instructions have been received from affected stockholders prior to the mailing date. If, at any time, you no longer wish to participate in "householding" and would prefer to receive a separate Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, or if you currently receive multiple copies and would like to request "householding" of your communications, please contact Broadridge by phone at (800) 542-1061 or by mail to Broadridge, Householding Department, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, New York 11717. Upon written or oral request, we will promptly deliver separate proxy materials to any stockholders who receive one paper copy at a shared address.

Communications with the Board of Directors

All interested parties, including our stockholders, may contact one or more of our directors in his or her capacity as a member of the Board, or the Board as a whole, about bona fide issues or questions about Grubhub, in writing via U.S. Mail or Expedited Delivery Service to the address below:

Grubhub Inc.

5 Bryant Park

1065 Avenue of the Americas, 15th Floor

New York, New York 10018

Attn: Secretary

Our General Counsel or Legal Department will review all incoming stockholder communications and, if appropriate, will forward such communications to the appropriate member(s) of the Board or, if none is specified, to the Chairman of the Board. Our General Counsel or Legal Department may decide in the exercise of its judgment whether a response to any stockholder communication is necessary.

### Other Business

The Board knows of no other business that may come before the Annual Meeting. However, if any other matters are properly presented at the meeting, the proxy holders will vote upon them in accordance with their best judgment.

# Incorporation by Reference

The information contained above under the captions "Audit Committee Report" and "Compensation Committee Report" shall not be deemed to be "soliciting material" or to be "filed" with the SEC, nor will such information be incorporated by reference into any future filing except to the extent that Grubhub incorporates it by reference into such filing.

### Annual Report on Form 10-K

A stockholder may obtain a copy of our 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K, free of charge, by visiting our website at http://investors.grubhub.com. Any stockholder who would like a copy of our 2015 Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the related financial statements and the financial statement schedules, may obtain one, without charge, by submitting a written request to the attention of our Secretary, Grubhub Inc., 111 W. Washington Street, Suite 2100, Chicago, Illinois 60602. Additionally, we will provide copies of the exhibits to the Annual Report on Form 10-K upon payment of a reasonable fee (which will be limited to our reasonable expenses in furnishing such exhibits).

GRUBHUB INC. 111 W. WASHINGTON STREET, SUITE 2100 CHICAGO, IL 60602 VOTE BY INTERNET www.proxyvote.com Use the Internet to transmit your voting instructions and for electronic delivery of information up until 10:59 PM CST on May 10, 2016. Have your proxy card in hand when you access the web site and follow the instructions to obtain your records and to create an electronic voting instruction form. VOTE BY PHONE -1-800-690-6903 Use any touch-tone telephone to transmit your voting instructions up until 10:59 PM CST on May 10, 2016. Have your proxy card in hand when you call and then follow the instructions. VOTE BY MAIL Mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid envelope we have provided or return it to Vote Processing, c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717 so that it is received prior to the Annual Meeting on May 11, 2016. ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF FUTURE PROXY MATERIALS If you would like to reduce the costs incurred by our company in mailing proxy materials, you can consent to receiving all future proxy statements, proxy cards and annual reports electronically via e-mail or the Internet. To sign up for electronic delivery, please follow the instructions above to vote using the Internet and, when prompted, indicate that you agree to receive or access proxy materials electronically in future years. DO NOT RETURN YOUR PROXY CARD IF YOU ARE VOTING VIA THE INTERNET OR BY PHONE TO VOTE, MARK BLOCKS BELOW IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS FOLLOWS: THIS PROXY CARD IS VALID ONLY WHEN SIGNED AND DATED. KEEP THIS PORTION FOR YOUR RECORDS DETACH AND RETURN THIS PORTION ONLYE03981-P74948VOTE BY INTERNET www.proxyvote.com Use the Internet to transmit your voting instructions and for electronic delivery of information up until 10:59 PM CST on May 10, 2016. Have your proxy card in hand when you access the web site and follow the instructions to obtain your records and to create an electronic voting instruction form. VOTE BY PHONE -1-800-690-6903 Use any touch-tone telephone to transmit your voting instructions up until 10:59 PM CST on May 10, 2016. Have your proxy card in hand when you call and then follow the instructions. VOTE BY MAIL Mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid envelope we have provided or return it to Vote Processing, c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, NY 11717 so that it is received prior to the Annual Meeting on May 11, 2016. ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF FUTURE PROXY MATERIALS If you would like to reduce the costs incurred by our company in mailing proxy materials, you can consent to receiving all future proxy statements, proxy cards and annual reports electronically via e-mail or the Internet. To sign up for electronic delivery, please follow the instructions above to vote using the Internet and, when prompted, indicate that you agree to receive or access proxy materials electronically in future years. DO NOT RETURN YOUR PROXY CARD IF YOU ARE VOTING VIA THE INTERNET OR BY PHONE GRUBHUB INC. 111 W. WASHINGTON STREET, SUITE 2100 CHICAGO, IL 60602 E03981-P74948 To withhold authority to vote for any individual nominee(s), mark "For All Except" and write the number(s) of the nominee(s) on the line below. GRUBHUB INC. For All Except Withhold All For All The Board of Directors recommends you vote FOR the following proposals: !!! 1. Election of Directors Nominees: 01) Justin Sadrian 02) David Fisher 03) Benjamin Spero Against Abstain For !!! 2. Ratification of the appointment of Crowe Horwath LLP as the company's independent registered accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016. 4. Advisory vote on the frequency of future advisory votes on named executive officer compensation. NOTE: Such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment thereof. Yes No !! The Board of Directors recommends you vote 1 Year on the following proposal: 3 Years 2 Years Abstain 1 Year 3. Advisory vote to approve named executive officer compensation. Please indicate if you plan to attend this meeting 4. Advisory vote on the frequency of future advisory votes on named executive officer compensation. NOTE: Such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment thereof. Please indicate if you plan to attend this meeting Yes No Please sign exactly as your name(s) appear(s) hereon. When signing as attorney, executor, administrator, or other fiduciary, please give full title of your capacity as such. Joint owners should each sign personally in the spaces provided and all joint owners must sign. If shares are held in a corporation or partnership, an authorized officer should sign and should indicate the full corporate or partnership name.Date Signature (Joint Owners) Date Signature

[PLEASE SIGN WITHIN BOX]

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting: The Notice and Proxy Statement and Annual Report are available at www.proxyvote.com. Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting: The Notice and Proxy Statement and Annual Report are available at www.proxyvote.com.E03982-P74948GRUBHUB INC.Annual Meeting of StockholdersMay 11, 2016 8:00 AM CSTThis proxy is solicited by the Board of DirectorsThe stockholder(s) hereby appoint(s) Adam DeWitt, Margo Drucker and Matthew Maloney, or any of them, as proxies, each with the power to appoint his or her substitute, and hereby authorizes them to represent and to vote, as designated on the reverse side of this ballot, all of the shares of common stock of GRUBHUB INC. that the stockholders are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held at 8:00 AM CST on May 11, 2016, at the offices of Kirkland & Ellis LLP, located at 300 North LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60654, and any adjournment or postponement thereof. This proxy, when properly executed, will be voted in the manner directed herein. If no such direction is made, this proxy will be voted in accordance with the recommendations of the Board of Directors.Continued and to be signed on reverse side